
Meeting of:  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date: Monday, 13th January, 2020
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1  Apologies 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  Declarations of Interest 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3  Urgent Items of Business 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4  Items for Exclusion of Public and Press 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

5  Minutes 4 - 8

Members are requested to approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on
the 28th October 2019.

Public Document Pack



6  Capital Report 9 - 22

The Committee will receive a report on Capital Spending.

7  Finance Update Report 2019/20 23 - 56

To consider the Finance Update Report 2019/20.

8  Collection Fund 2019/20 57 - 67

A report on the Collection Fund 2019/2020 will be presented to the 
Committee for noting.

9  Organisational Development Plan 2019 68 - 101

The Committee will receive the Organisation Plan 2019

10  Workforce Wellbeing Update 2019 102 - 115

The Committee will receive a Workforce Wellbeing Update for 2019.

11  Exclusion of Press and Public 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information. 

12  Insurance Claims Report 2018/19 116 - 135

For Members to receive a report on insurance claims 2018/19.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor David Bamford Councillor Malcolm Boriss
Councillor Michael Holly Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Amna Mir Councillor Kallum Nolan
Councillor Shaun O'Neill Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Faisal Rana Councillor Linda Robinson
Councillor Elsie Wraighte



For more information about this meeting, please contact 
John Addison – Governance and Committee Services 

Telephone: 01706 924829
e-mail: john.addison@rochdale.gov.uk



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday, 28 October 2019

PRESENT: Councillor Michael Holly (Chair); Councillors Bamford, O'Neill, 
Besford, Boriss, Joinson, Nolan, Wraighte, O'Rourke, Rana and Robinson

OFFICERS: Julie Murphy – Chief Finance Officer, Rosemary Barker (Head of 
Workforce and Organisational Development), Caroline Wolfenden (Head of 
Corporate Policy and Performance)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Mir

118 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declaration of interest received.

119 ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

It was reported that there was one item of business under this item.

120 MINUTES

RESOLVED

That the Minutes held on the 23rd July 2019 be approved as a correct record.

121 3RD & 4TH QUARTER CORPORATE COMPLAINTS
The Head of Information, Customers and Communities provided Members 
with a summary of corporate complaints and compliments received during the 
third and fourth quarters of 2018/19. Members were reminded that part of the 
Council’s performance management process was to ensure the Authority’s 
ambition to continuously improve services was realised.

It was reported that 276 new complaints had been received during the second 
half of 2018/19 across all services, the majority of the complaints being 
resolved at stage one, with only 12 escalating to stage two. It was noted that 
three complaints were dealt with directly at stage two due to the nature of the 
complaint, and five complaints were dealt with at stage three. A total of 164 
compliments were received during the reporting period. 

Members were pleased to note there had been a slight reduction in the overall 
number of complaints received, with the majority of services receiving fewer 
complaints in the reporting period compared to the previous year.

In response to a question around fly tipping and the cost to the Council, it was 
noted that a written response would be provided outside of the meeting.

Public Document Pack

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



RESOLVED 

That the report be noted.

122 LGSCO ANNUAL REVIEW 2018-19

The Head of Information, Customers and Communities provided Members 
with a report on the Annual Review of complaints made to the Local 
Government & Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) about Rochdale Borough 
Council in the year ending 31 March 2019.

It was reported that the review showed a relatively small number of complaints 
received against Rochdale Council by the Ombudsman during 2018/19. In 
total 48 complaints and enquiries were received which was similar to the 
previous year. It was noted that the number of decisions made by the LGSCO 
differed from the number of complaints and enquiries received, as complaints 
may be received and decided upon in different financial years.

The Committee was informed that of 50 decisions made during 2018/19, only 
11 complaints were subject to detailed investigation. 16 complaints were 
referred back to the Council as they were considered premature under the 
Council’s own complaints procedure, 20 complaints were closed after initial 
enquiries, and 3 complaints were classified as invalid. Of the 11 complaints 
that were investigated, 9 were found to be upheld and 2 were not upheld. The 
LGSCO recommended remedies for 6 of the upheld complaints, all of which 
were accepted and implemented.

RESOLVED 

That the report be noted.

123 BUDGET UPDATE AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2020/21 
TO 2024/25

The Chief Finance Officer presented to Members an update on the Medium-
Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 to 2024/25. The report also provided an 
update on the latest budget position for the Council and Heywood, Middleton 
and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group.

Member were reminded that the Council currently had a budget gap and that 
the assumptions that underpinned the gap had been reviewed in line with the 
latest available information, including the impact of the Spending Round 2019, 
impacting on 2020/21 funding, announced by the Chancellor of the Exchequer 
on 4th September 2019. Members noted that certainty around the funding 
announced on 4th September would not be gained until the Local Government 
Finance Settlement 2020/21, expected to be announced in late 2019.

It was reported that the Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
2019/20 to 2023/24 was approved at Budget Council on the 27th February 
2019. It was noted that the MTFS had been reviewed and updated reflecting 

Page 5



current budget assumptions. The MTFS for 2020/21 to 2024/25 would be 
formally presented for approval at Budget Council on the 26th February 2020.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

124 COLLECTION FUND 2019/20

The Committee received a report from the Chief Finance Officer who updated 
Members on the Council’s Collection Fund outturn position for 2019/2020. The 
Committee were advised that this report would be submitted to the Council’s 
Cabinet, in November 2019 where the recommendations would be requested 
to be approved. 

It was reported that the Collection Fund Position for 2019/20 was a forecast 
as a surplus of £1.454m, comprising: £0.763m surplus relating to Business 
Rates; and £0.691m surplus relating to Council Tax. The Council’s share of 
the forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund outturn surplus was £1.343m. 

RESOLVED 

That the report be noted.

125 DISCRETIONARY FEES & CHARGES

The Chief Finance Officer provided Members with a report on the proposed 
Council  Services fees and charges for 2020/21, and details of any fees and 
charges above the 0% general uplift.

It was noted that the fees and charges in the report had been proposed by 
each Directorate, taking into account the 0% general uplift in Discretionary 
Fees and Charges agreed at Cabinet in July 2019. Any uplifts that were not in 
line with the 0% proposal, were highlighted in the report.

RESOLVED 

That Cabinet be requested not to implement charges for new or replacement 
bins.

126 FINANCE UPDATE REPORT 2019/20

The Chief Finance Officer presented to the Committee a report, which 
updated Members on the Council’s financial position as at the end of July 
2019. It was noted that the report had been approved by the Cabinet at its 
meeting in October 2019. 

The report provided Members with details on;

Page 6



 The forecast Revenue position, which was an overspend of £7.231m.
 An update of the Savings target of £0.135m, as part of the Revenue budget 
2019/20. 
 An update on the Health & Social Care Pool Budget position. 
 Forecast Capital spend of £128.532m after net re-phasing of £5.948m.

Members held a discussion around the pooled budget and how this was/could 
be scrutinised, with Members agreeing that they wished to receive at its 
February 2020 meeting a presentation on the pooled budget, challenges it 
faces and what is being done to tackle the challenges.

RESOLVED 

1) That the report be noted.

2) That at its February 2020 meeting, Members receive a presentation on 
the pooled budget, challenges it faces and what is being done to tackle 
the challenges.

127 SCHOOLS FINAL OUTTURNS AND REPORTABLE SURPLUS BALANCES 
2018/19

The Committee considered a report on the final budget outturns and 
reportable surplus held by local authority-maintained schools. Members were 
advised that it was a requirement for Councils to review and challenge the 
level of surpluses held by individual schools.

The Committee was reminded that surplus balances greater than 8% of a 
school’s funding for a consecutive two-year period were subject to challenge 
and review by the local authority in conjunction with Schools Forum. It was 
reported that potentially, under Rochdale’s Scheme for Financing Schools, 
any surpluses fitting the defined criteria and not deemed to be used for 
‘eligible’ purposes could be clawed-back with re-distribution to all schools via 
the fair funding formula. 

Members considered the report and note that there were currently 29 schools 
(25 primary, 1 secondary, 1 nursery and 2 special) with a surplus balance 
greater than the threshold percentage. Of those 29 schools, 15 were subject 
to review in accordance with Section 4 of the Scheme for Financing Schools. 
It was reported that all 15 schools had provided details of the planned spend 
and a summary was provided to Members.

RESOLVED 

That the report be noted.

128 WORK PROGRAMME

Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for the remainder of 
the municipal year 2019/2020. 

Page 7



RESOLVED 

That the report be noted.

129 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

It was noted that that the press and public should be excluded from the 
remaining part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A) 4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

130 SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2020/21 TO 2021/22

The Committee received a report from the Chief Finance Officer on 
recommendations that would be presented to Cabinet on proposals in order to 
meet the budget gap for 2020/21 and 2021/22.

Members held a detailed debate on each proposal and agreed a number of 
suggestions to be presented to Cabinet, Members further agreed to look at a 
number of business an usual saving proposals and to look at the process 
involved in reporting these to Members.

RESOLVED

1) That Cabinet be asked to reconsider the saving proposals it is 
considering for consultation on;

 Reduction in Voluntary Sector Grants to a homelessness charity 
Brentwood - £3k

 Proposal to close Milnrow Youth Centre - £3.2k
 Environmental Management Township Rangers - £17k

2) That Cabinet be requested not to implement charges for new or 
replacement bins.

3) That the Chair, Vice-Chair and Senior Governance and Committee 
Officer look to set up a Task Group, to  consider how BAU decisions 
are taken and how they are reported to Members, looking at some 
appropriate examples. The Task Group will also consider the Council’s 
Scheme of Delegation (in relation to this matter).

Page 8



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 2nd December 2019
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Julie Murphy
Public/Private Document Public

Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2022/23

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

To inform Cabinet and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 
Council’s proposed Capital Programme for 2021/22 to 2022/23.

The proposed Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2022/23 contains details of 
schemes for the following years:

 2020/21 budget of £80.723m
 2021/22 budget of £48.480m  
 2022/23 budget of £25.232m

The Capital Programme is funded from a combination of Capital Receipts, 
Prudential Borrowing, Invest to Save, Government Grants and Contributions, 
and Revenue Contributions to Capital Outlay. 

Some of the assumed external funding included in the programme is still subject 
to clarification from Government and in some cases may involve bids for funds. 
It is therefore recommended that all approvals are subject to confirmation of 
funding allocations.

Recommendation

2.1 That the 2020/21 (£80.723m) Capital Programme and provisional 
programmes for 2021/22 and 2022/23, be approved for the purposes of 
consultation, subject to confirmation of grant funding allocations.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 The provisional 2020/21 to 2022/23 Capital Programme is presented to 
Cabinet for consultation as part of the budget setting process. 

Key Points for Consideration

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

The proposed Capital Programme has been developed in line with the Council’s 
priorities:
 Place Plan – aligning capital investment to support the borough’s 

economic growth potential and continue to regenerate our town centres.
 Corporate Plan – ensuring the borough maintains its high standard of 

quality building and public space.
 Asset Strategy – aiming to hold fewer but more efficient assets, realising 

maximum value from the estate whilst safeguarding its staff, customers 
and other building users.

Along with the Council’s current priorities, the proposed Capital Programme has 
been developed for 2020/21 to 2022/23, taking into consideration the available 
resources. The approach for setting the 2020/21 capital budget has followed the 
steps below: 

• Initial budget as provisionally approved at Budget Council on 27th 
February 2019.

• Review of 2019/20 and 2020/21 schemes – work has been undertaken 
with Services and Leadership Team to review 2019/20 and 2020/21 
schemes taking into account spend to date, previous re-phasing of 
budget,  and links to the Council’s priorities.

• Consideration of new schemes in relation to the Council’s priorities.
• Final Review Session with the Leader of the Council / Cabinet Member for 

Finance, Director of Resources, Director of Neighbourhoods, and Director 
of Economy, followed by approval to progress the proposed programme 
by the Council’s Leadership Team.

Appendices 1 and 2 detail the proposed Capital Programme for 2020/21 and 
provisional Capital Programmes for 2021/22 and 2022/23 which are for 
consultation as part of the Council’s budget setting process.

When a scheme is approved and the proposed spend is profiled across financial 
years, the scheme funding will be approved across these financial years and 
will therefore be considered as a priority in future years. Any reduction in the 
funding of these schemes will only be considered where contracts have not 
been entered into.

Schemes totalling £80.723m have been proposed to be included in the 2020/21 
Capital Programme. Table A below shows the total proposed Capital 
expenditure by service for 2020/21 to 2021/22, and how the expenditure is 
proposed to be funded. 

Page 10



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Table A – Summary of Capital programme

 2020/21  2021/22 2022/23
Directorate £'000 £'000 £'000
Adult Care 2,440 2,440 2,440
Children's Services 21,640 7,516 7,516
Economy 19,559 11,550 4,431
Neighbourhoods 30,745 26,686 10,485
Public Health 4,328 288 360
Resources 2,011 0 0
Total requirement 80,723 48,480 25,232
    

Funding Source
Prudential Borrowing 19,539 19,975 11,580
External Grant and contributions 37,983 19,973 11,923
Invest to Save 20,428 7,338 1,530
Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay 1,704 155 155
Capital Receipts 1,069 1,039 44
Total funding 80,723 48,480 25,232

The Capital schemes listed in Appendix 1 are categorised as follows:

 Annual Allocation - These schemes receive annual allocations either as 
a result of external funding, or because the capital investment is essential 
for the Council to maintain current service delivery or to meet statutory 
responsibilities.

 Scheme started in previous years - These schemes are multi-year 
schemes that commenced prior to 2020/21.

 New Bid - These are new schemes or schemes requiring additional 
funding for the 2020/21 capital programme.

Borrowing of £19.539m is required to fund expenditure relating to specific 
schemes in 2020/21. The revenue cost of this is approximately £1.524m per 
annum.

Alternatives Considered

The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget setting 
process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. Budgets are 
prepared in accordance with the approved guidelines.

A number of alternative elements of the Capital Programme were considered in 
the development of the programme, the one which is presented is of the most 
strategic/community value and therefore forms the basis for Public Consultation, 
on the understanding that any alternatives offered during that process will be 
considered.

Page 11



Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

As the cost of the proposed Capital programme is greater than the capital 
receipts and external funding available, borrowing is required to fund the 
difference. This has an impact on the Council’s Revenue budget.

Borrowing requires repayment of both the principle sum borrowed and 
associated interest over a given number of years. The budgeted cost of 
borrowing for 2020/21 is £0.280m, increasing to £1.524m in 2021/22.

The Capital budget is funded from a number of sources: borrowing, capital 
receipts, revenue contribution to capital outlay and external funding/ 
contributions. Borrowing has an implication for the Council’s Revenue budget 
as the Council has to make provision to repay the cost of borrowing.

The Council is able to borrow resources for capital schemes. The revenue 
implications of this option are that for every £1m of capital expenditure there 
is approximately £61k per annum of revenue cost to repay borrowing, over a 
40 year period. If borrowing is required over a shorter period, the annual cost 
is greater but the overall cost is less. 

Since Budget Council in February 2019, a number of new schemes have been 
added to the provisional  2020/21 Capital Programme which are to be funded 
by borrowing; and a review of the phasing of expenditure of existing schemes 
has taken place, with several schemes re-profiling the expenditure into future 
years. In addition, two schemes, approved in previous years, have been 
removed from the programme:

 Town Centre Capital Programme
 Town Centre Purchases – Rochdale & Middleton

The net annual budgeted cost of borrowing for 2020/21 additional and revised 
schemes is £0.117m; the appropriate revenue cost will be included within the 
revenue budget for 2020/21 and future years, and presented to Cabinet in 
February 2020.

The scheme for the decant of Rochdale Town Hall requires Revenue Funding 
of £750k, which will be included within the revenue budget for 2020/21, and  
presented to Cabinet in February 2020.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

Externally funded schemes cannot start until confirmation of the required 
funding has been received. This is a particular risk where the scheme is 
reliant on external funding with the provisional budget being based on 
forecast income. Should the level of income not be received, the level of 
expenditure would need to be considered to allow the scheme to progress 
with a reduced budget.

Under the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) 
Regulations 2000 the responsibility for approving any plan or strategy for the 

Page 12



control of local authority borrowing, investment or Capital Strategy or for 
determining the minimum revenue provision is a decision of the full Council. 
The function of the Executive is to prepare and propose the relevant strategy 
to the Council. The Council may require the Cabinet to reconsider, amend, 
modify, revise, vary, withdraw or revoke the strategy.

Consultation

7.1 Stakeholders are consulted at appropriate stages throughout the budget 
process. Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Joint 
Consultative and Negotiating Group will be consulted on the Capital 
programme.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Budget 2020/21 to 2022/23 files Finance Services, Number 1 Riverside

For further information contact: Stuart Smith, 
Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
Tel : 01706 924196

Page 13



Appendix 1 – Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2021/22

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020/21 TO 2022/23

Directorate Scheme Name Category 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant Annual Allocation 2,440 2,440 2,440 2,440 2,440 2,440
Children's Services Children with Disabilities cost reduction project New bid 1,114 1,114
Children's Services Devolved Formula Capital Annual Allocation 483 483 483 483 483 483
Children's Services New Place Planning Annual Allocation 18,005 5,200 5,200 18,005 5,200 5,200
Children's Services Schools Capital Condition Programme Annual Allocation 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833
Children's Services Special Provision Fund Annual Allocation 205 205
Economy Property Growth Fund Scheme started in previous years 10,000 10,000
Economy Hopwood Old Hall refurbishment Scheme started in previous years 25 25
Economy Rochdale & Littleborough Flood Relief Scheme Scheme started in previous years 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,600
Economy East Lancashire Railway Scheme started in previous years 50 50
Economy East Lancashire Railway - Castleton Masterplan New Bid 500 1,000 500 1,000
Economy Hopwood Old Hall - feasibility New Bid 50 50
Economy Milkstone Road Masterplan & improvements Scheme started in previous years 250 250
Economy Rail Strategy and Park & Ride Scheme started in previous years 200 200
Economy Rochdale Fire Station - office space New bid 200 50 200 50
Economy Rochdale Station Gateway New Bid 2,000 2,000
Economy Rochdale Station Gateway Feasibility & delivery Scheme started in previous years 250 250 250 250
Economy Smithybridge Railway Station - Park and Ride New Bid 400 400
Economy Drake Street - Phases II & III Scheme started in previous years 250 150 100 250 150 100
Economy Heywood/Middleton/Littleborough - Town Centre Masterplans New Bid 160 160
Economy Metrolink Feasibility Scheme started in previous years 50 50
Economy Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 Scheme started in previous years 500 2,000 500 2,000
Economy Rochdale Town Centre (3 year strategy) Scheme started in previous years 300 300
Economy Rochdale Town Hall decant New bid 750 750
Economy Rochdale Town Hall restoration Scheme started in previous years 3,024 3,024
Economy Rochdale Town Hall restoration (phase 2) New bid 4,331 4,331
Economy Rochdale Town Hall restoration (phase 3) New bid
Economy Rochdale Town Hall Square - phase 2 Scheme started in previous years 3,500 3,500
Economy Rochdale Town Hall Square (extension to existing scheme) New bid
Economy Town Centre Residential Strategy Scheme started in previous years 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Boroughwide Allotments Scheme started in previous years 58 65 58 65
Neighbourhoods Replacement Parks/Street Machinery Annual Allocation 120 120 120 120 120 120
Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way Annual Allocation 80 80 80 80 80 80
Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment Annual Allocation 75 75 75 75 75 75
Neighbourhoods Vehicle Replacement Programme Annual Allocation / New Bid 1,345 655 1,839 1,276 616 1,625 69 39 44 170
Neighbourhoods Waste Bin Replacement Programme Annual Allocation 360 360 360 360 360 360
Neighbourhoods Bowlee Free School Scheme started in previous years 522 522
Neighbourhoods Highways Investment Scheme started in previous years / New bid 4,000 3,000 3,000 2,000 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Junction 19 New bid * *
Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan Annual Allocation 1,967 1,967 1,967 1,967 1,967 1,967
Neighbourhoods Town Centre Signage Scheme started in previous years 50 50
Neighbourhoods Compulsory Purchase Order Programme Scheme started in previous years / New bid 1,200 1,000 1,000 1,200 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Delivering High Value Housing Scheme started in previous years 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund Annual Allocation 800 800 800 800 800 800
Neighbourhoods Customer Transformation Programme Scheme started in previous years 468 150 468 150
Neighbourhoods GM Full Fibre Programme Scheme started in previous years 926 926
Neighbourhoods ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme Annual Allocation / New bid 444 444 444 260 444 444 184
Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff) Annual Allocation 500 500 500 500 500 500
Neighbourhoods Service Desk System Replacement New bid 60 50 50 50 50 60
Neighbourhoods Extending libraries opening hours New bid 150 150
Neighbourhoods RFID - library self serve equipment - replacement project New bid 70 70
Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group Annual allocation 2,000 1,750 1,750 2,000 1,750 1,750
Neighbourhoods Number One Riverside - revolving doors replacement New bid 120 120
Neighbourhoods Burglary Reduction Scheme Annual Allocation 100 100 100 100 100 100
Neighbourhoods Climate Emergency - Carbon Neutral New Bid 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Neighbourhoods Townships Capital Programme Annual Allocation 400 400 400 400 400 400
Public Health Hollingworth Lake improvements New bid 300 300
Public Health Leisure Centre Improvements New bid 20 20
Public Health Link4Life additional equipment Heywood New bid 50 50
Public Health Link4Life additional equipment Rochdale New bid 130 130
Public Health Link4Life building alterations Heywood New bid 170 170
Public Health Link4Life building alterations Rochdale New bid 270 270
Public Health Link4Life equipment Annual allocation / New bid 388 288 360 388 288 360
Public Health Replacement of Lake Bank Buildings at Hollingworth Lake New bid 3,000 3,000
Resources HR & Payroll system New bid 151 151
Resources Manchester Airport Investment Scheme started in previous years 1,860 1,860

TOTAL 80,723 48,480 25,232 19,539 19,975 11,580 1,069 1,039 44 37,983 19,973 11,923 20,428 7,338 1,530 1,704 155 155
* This information is exempt by virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

Government Grants and 
External Contributions 

£000

Invest to Save
£000

Revenue Contribution to 
Capital Outlay

£000

Total Requirement
£000

Prudential Borrowing
£000

Capital Receipts
£000

P
age 14



Appendix 2 – Detail By Scheme

NO. DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
 Budget
2020/21

£'000 

 Budget 
2021/22

£'000 

 Budget 
2022/23

£'000 

1 Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant
The legislative framework governing DFG is provided by the 'Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration 
Act 1996'. Since 1990, local authorities have been under a statutory duty to provide grant aid to disabled 
people for a range of adaptations in their homes.

2,440 2,440 2,440

2,440 2,440 2,440ADULT CARE

NO. DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
 Budget
2020/21

£'000 

 Budget 
2021/22

£'000 

 Budget 
2022/23

£'000 

1
Children's 
Services

Devolved Formula Capital
Schools will develop and commission individual schemes to improve condition and suitability within their 
buildings with guidance and approval from the Council.

483 483 483

2
Children's 
Services

New Place Planning
Provision of additional school places to meet statutory duty through a programme of works combining internal 
remodelling, new build or demountable classroom units.

18,005 5,200 5,200

3
Children's 
Services

Schools Capital Condition 
Programme

Development of a programme of works to resolve major condition and improvement issues in school buildings 
in line with the Local Authority's Asset Management Strategy and Local Policy Statement.

1,833 1,833 1,833

4
Children's 
Services

Special Provision Fund

The special provision fund is to support local authorities to make capital investments in provision for pupils 
with special educational needs and disabilities. To be invested in new places and improvements to facilities 
for pupils with education, health and care (EHC) plans in mainstream and special schools, nurseries, colleges 
and other provision.

205 -

5
Children's 
Services

Children with Disabilities cost 
reduction project

Costing the purchase of a house that would provide a 3 -4 bed children's home for young people with complex 
needs to achieve cost savings. Will include examination of whether the purchase of such a building would, 
along with the revenue costs, reduce the cost of current and future placements in the context of growing 
demand.

       1,114 

21,640 7,516 7,516CHILDREN'S SERVICES

P
age 15



NO. DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
 Budget
2020/21

£'000 

 Budget 
2021/22

£'000 

 Budget 
2022/23

£'000 

1 Economy Property Growth Fund

Extension of the existing Commercial Investment Fund (CIF) project, which seeks to acquire properties for a 
commercial, financial return, and to generate revenue savings of 1.5% on the capital invested.
To date, all the CIF acquisitions have been within the borough boundaries, although there was no specific 
prohibition on out-of-borough purchases. In Phase 3 it is proposed to widen the geographical parameters to 
acquire properties out-of-borough. 

10,000 -

2 Economy
Hopwood Old Hall 

refurbishment

The Council has commissioned a scheme of urgent repairs to stabilise and weatherproof this Grade 1 listed 
building using match funding from Historic England. The proposal seeks to capitalise on this investment by 
having a resource to  work with stakeholders, funders and potential interested parties to progress feasibility 
options to secure a sustainable and viable re-use and restoration of this nationally significant heritage asset.  

25 -

3 Economy
Rochdale & Littleborough Flood 

Relief Scheme

The River Roch catchment is the main river network in Rochdale Borough and is vulnerable to extensive flood 
risks affecting communities, businesses, town centres and infrastructure including power, rail and roads. The 
Environment Agency have identified the River Roch catchment as one of their regional priorities for their 
capital investment programme and propose a series of flood storage areas and improved defences to reduce 
the risk of serious flooding for over 1000 homes and businesses.

1,600 1,600

4 Economy East Lancashire Railway

Project is to support ELR extension into Castleton to connect direct rail access to mainline giving accessibility 
to visitors from across northern England together with investment at Heywood station.  The ELR mainline 
project will be a landmark heritage attraction for the Borough with significant physical and economic benefits 
for regeneration of Castleton District centre.

50 -

5 Economy
East Lancashire Railway - 

Castleton Masterplan

The Castleton Station Area Masterplan  identifies the ELR and development of the station area as an 
opportunity to support growth in Castleton, sustainably connect strategic residential sites, develop tourism, 
increase access to employment, services and culture.

500 1,000

6 Economy Hopwood Old Hall -  feasibility
Feasibility works to supplement the ongoing capital programme funding to develop viable future uses of 
Hopwood Old Hall and surrounding land

50

7 Economy
Milkstone Rd Masterplan & 

improvements

To produce a masterplan and associated work programme of physical improvements to make the Milkstone 
and Deeplish Local Centre a more attractive retail and living environment and to secure additional private 
investment in the more effective use of buildings (including upper floors)and spaces to provide increased 
residential and mixed uses, The project will deliver improved street scene, building frontages, pedestrian and 
traffic signage and management and public realm.

250 -

8 Economy Rail Strategy, and Park & Ride

The proposal is for funding to undertake feasibility work or direct development to provide additional park and 
ride facilities at mainline railway station and Metrolink stations.  Schemes would include Rochdale railway 
station, Castleton and Smithy Bridge stations where land is available  Option for Metrolink park and ride at 
Newhey. 

200 -

P
age 16



9 Economy
Rochdale Fire Station - office 

space
Project to create a co-working office space in the 1st floor of the old fire station with excellent transport and 
digital connectivity. 

200 50

10 Economy Rochdale Station Gateway 

To undertake physical improvements within and around Rochdale railway station to encourage further public 
and private sector investment in the wider station area. Proposals will enhance the appearance of this 
gateway entrance to the Borough to include residential led masterplanning, land assembly, new station 
entrance and passenger facilities, park and ride, public realm, pedestrian and cycling facilities and traffic 
management.

2,000

11 Economy
Rochdale Station Gateway 

Feasibility & delivery

To undertake physical improvements within and around Rochdale railway station to encourage further public 
and private sector investment in the wider station area. Proposals will enhance the appearance of this 
gateway entrance to the Borough to include masterplanning, land assembly, new station entrance and 
passenger facilities, park and ride, public realm, pedestrian and cycling facilities and traffic management.  

250 250

12 Economy
Smithybridge Railway Station - 

Park and Ride
This land was acquired in Summer 2019 with funding to be used for site preparation (including demolition) and 
preliminary design of a 100+ space car park, planning fees and subject to overall costs, on site construction.  

400

13 Economy Drake Street - Phases II & III
This project aims to work with businesses and property owners to restructure the mix of uses, improve 
infrastructure and connectivity, increase footfall and promote independent retail and increased town centre 
living in the area.

250 150 100

14 Economy
Heywood / Middleton / 

Littleborough - Town Centre 
Masterplans

Heywood, Middleton and Littleborough Town Centres play a key role for the township and the overall success 
of the borough. Following investigation from high level masterplanning projects, opportunities to strengthen 
the town centres have been identified. This bid will support investment and development proposals involving 
new development and the reuse and refurbishment of existing buildings and sites. 

160

15 Economy Metrolink Feasibility
To support ongoing work with TfGM to improve public transport in Middleton, including accessibility into the 
Northern Gateway employment area

50 - -

16 Economy Rochdale Riverside Phase 2
The project will fund a package of enabling works needed to plug the viability gap for the development of 
Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 site

500 2,000 -

17 Economy
Rochdale Town Centre (3 year 

strategy)

Funding will support the delivery of interventions identified in the strategy including physical projects 
(property improvements & public realm works), economic initiatives to complement the current business 
rates reduction scheme, the development of strategies and interventions for upper Yorkshire Street and 
Water Street, and promoting development opportunities.

300 - -

P
age 17



18 Economy Rochdale Town Hall decant

The decant of the Town Hall is essential in order to let the construction contract for phase 1 to start in 2021. It 
is essential therefore that the building is vacant by 31/12/2020. There are 3 elements:
- Services 
- Equipment and artefacts
- Events and civic functions

750

19 Economy Rochdale Town Hall restoration Restoration of Rochdale Town Hall 3,024

20 Economy
Rochdale Town Hall restoration 

(phase 2)

Town Hall (phase 2) is the part National Lottery Heritage Fund (NLHF) - an £8.95m funded project to restore the 
building. There is now an additional requirement needed to support the following:
- top up budget due to previous expenditure used for essential maintenance and improvements 
- NLHF round 1 approval was predicated upon RBC underwriting £3m of external funding yet to be secured. 
- cover for potential inflationary costs
- additional RDA Project Management, due diligence costs, and fees for specialist advice 

4,331

21 Economy
Rochdale Town Hall restoration 

(phase 3)

Town Hall (phase 3) covers the parts of the building not funded from the NLHF grant and existing RBC capital 
programme budget. This covers internal work to the areas in the West wing and basement, including the 
current council chamber, registrars space and vacant offices and basement. This scheme would make the space 
ready for occupation. The council's strategy is to try to identify other funding sources for this area.

22 Economy
Rochdale Town Hall Square - 

phase 2
Further works within Rochdale Town Hall Square 3,500

23 Economy
Rochdale Town Hall Square 

(extension to existing scheme)

The council has a long held ambition to rejuvenate the area around the Town Hall. The Town Hall Square 
project is currently at RIBA Stage 2 and costs are still being determined due to scope changes. As such this 
project will be developed over the coming months.

24 Economy
Town Centre Residential 

Strategy

Following nomination of Rochdale Town Centre in GM Mayor's Town Centres Challenge, the Council, 
supported by GMCA will adopt a Residential Strategy for Rochdale town centre.  The strategy seeks to create 
the market conditions to deliver around 2,000 residential units within the Town Centre.  The programme 
budget would be used to bring forward a viable Phase 1 package of sites through a mixture of land assembly, 
site remediation, pre planning work, up front infrastructure cost and used to lever match fund investment by 
the GMCA or private sector.    

1,000 1,000 -

19,559 11,550 4,431ECONOMY

P
age 18



NO. DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
 Budget
2020/21

£'000 

 Budget 
2021/22

£'000 

 Budget 
2022/23

£'000 

1 Neighbourhoods Boroughwide Allotments

The Borough of Rochdale currently has 524 allotment plots.  The Government’s Thorpe Report recommended 
that Councils provide 15 allotment plots per 1,000 households. At 94,263 households Rochdale BC should have 
1,414 plots.
Environmental Management (EM) propose to meet demand by creating new allotment sites, which would 
increase provision by 100 new plots every year for the next five years.   This would increase the number of 
plots to over 1,000. 58 65 -

2 Neighbourhoods
Replacement Parks/Street 

Machinery

The programme is a rolling replacement scheme for replacement of the Council's 550 plus pieces of 
machinery. The programme aims to replace assets when they have exceeded the most cost-effective period of 
operation.

120 120 120

3 Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way
The programme is a rolling scheme for carrying out the statutory function of maintaining the Council's Rights 
of Way network. 

80 80 80

4 Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment
To maintain within legislative requirements and guidelines the current level of Fixed Play provision across the 
borough.

75 75 75

5 Neighbourhoods
Vehicle Replacement 

Programme

To replace existing vehicles at the end of their optimum asset life.  Remove vehicles from the programme due 
to changes in requirements and add new requirements into acquisition and replacement schedule.
Partially Invest to Save scheme relating to decision to purchase fleet vehicles rather than hire.  

1,345 655 1,839

6 Neighbourhoods
Waste Bin Replacement 

Programme

Scheme is to replace wheelie bins which are no longer fit for purpose, and increased demand for new bins as 
they were first introduced in 1991 and have an estimated  life of 10 years.  The scheme may also increase 
recycling rates which in turn would reduces the cost of waste disposal.

360 360 360

7 Neighbourhoods Bowlee Free School

Funding of the proposed Free School is provided via a fixed budget based on pupil numbers, 12% of the 
budget is allocated to external works; this does not include highway accessibility. It is the responsibility of the 
Local Authority to provide a site with sufficient accessibility. In addition to direct vehicular access from 
Heywood Old Road, cycle / pedestrian routes from the adjacent Langley estate directly to the Free School site 
are required to support this development at the planning application stage. 

522 - -

8 Neighbourhoods Highways Investment Continuing investment  in Rochdale’s Highways Infrastructure, across roads and footpaths. 4,000 3,000 -

9 Neighbourhoods Junction 19

The South Heywood Junction 19 scheme comprises two main elements. These are;
a) the construction of a 2.2km Link Road from J19 of the M62 to Pilsworth Road to improve access to the 
existing South Heywood Employment Area, and 
b) the associated development of  up to 1,000 new homes, approximately 1.45 million sq ft of employment 
space, a new primary school and village centre retail. 
Planning and Licensing Committee were minded to approve the planning application in March 2018, subject to 
the completion of necessary legal documents.         

* *

P
age 19



10 Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan
To continue the aspirations of the Rochdale Highways Capital Programme and be more effective in identifying 
and responding to the Local Transport Plan shared priorities of Safety, Air Quality, Congestion and 
Accessibility. 

1,967 1,967 1,967

11 Neighbourhoods Town Centre Signage

Due to the on-going redevelopment in Rochdale Town Centre some of the existing directional signage is 
outdated and incorrect. This scheme would review the existing signage around the Town Centre and replace 
or remove any signage that is inaccurate. The current incorrect signage is misleading and confusing visitors and 
deliveries to the Town Centre. 

50 - -

12 Neighbourhoods Compulsory Purchase Orders

Acquisition of private land and buildings where current owner fails to bring asset into use either blighting the 
area or preventing further economic/physical development. Compulsory Purchase Order powers will be used 
but an offer must first be made to purchase the asset through negotiation. Budget is required to fund the 
purchase price or compensation, staffing costs, legal and valuation fees (external and internal). Subsequent 
disposal of some assets will offset some of the costs.  

1,200 1,000 1,000

13 Neighbourhoods Delivering High Value Housing

The programme aims to deliver over 1,000 new higher value homes in the borough over a ten year period, 
through proactive site assembly and promotion of development opportunities, using council and privately 
owned land. The aim is to facilitate the development of more higher value housing in order to attract and 
retain economically active households. This will generate Council Tax, section 106 and New Homes Bonus 
revenue to support local services, as well as attracting more disposal income to the borough, retaining local 
spend and boosting place-based regeneration. 

1,000 1,000 -

14 Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund

Scheme proposes to improve private sector dwellings & environments. Interventions include
-emergency repairs to owner-occupied properties
-works in default to private rented properties
-corrective works to houses in multiple occupation
-tenancy/rent bonds for residents desperate to access decent accommodation unable to access social housing

800 800 800

15 Neighbourhoods
Customer Transformation 

Programme

It has been agreed to progress the Council’s “Customer Transformation Programme” as a delivery mechanism 
bringing together all customer related transformation including redesign of systems under one programme of 
work, realising financial and non financial benefits. A phased approach is being proposed. Phase1 - detail 
analysis over 6 months, identify options & develop a detail business case with precise costs and benefits. 
Phase 2 - implementation phase funded via capital

468 150 -

16 Neighbourhoods GM Full Fibre Programme

GMCA has successfully secured £23.8m capital Local Full Fibre Network Challenge funding.  The funding will 
connect full fibre to over 1,500 GM Public sector sites, including Local Authority sites, GM Fire and Rescue, 
Health and Social Care partnerships (CCGs) sites across the region. This represents the Council’s capital 
contribution.

926 - -

17 Neighbourhoods
ICT Infrastructure Refresh 

Programme

To refresh, on a rolling programme the ICT estate. To remove the need for individual Services & Directorates 
to hold funds related to ICT equipment. Preventing purchasing of non-strategic & inappropriate ICT.  To control 
and make the spend on ICT equipment the most efficient and cost effective by maintaining a relatively small 
annual amount as opposed to large investments every 7/8 years

444 444 444

18 Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff)
To deliver the Council's ICT projects utilising existing ICT staff, to reduce the Capital required each year. The 
programmes deliver a variety of objectives for each business area and are assessed against business cases to 
check that they are in line with corporate objectives

500 500 500

P
age 20



19 Neighbourhoods
Service Desk System 

Replacement

ICT Services use Microsoft Service Manager to log and manage ICT issues and service requests. This system will 
soon become unsupported by Microsoft and requires replacement. The current system is ineffective and there 
is the opportunity to improve performance through a new system which would provide features such as an 
online customer portal and automation of internal processes. The Members Enquiries system is also managed 
from this system and also encounters similar problems.

60 50 50

20 Neighbourhoods
Extending libraries opening 

hours

The library service wishes to extend the opening hours, on a trial basis, of some of  its branches by means of 
using technology which allows access to and use of libraries without increasing staffing. Open+ technology 
controls access to a library building, its stock and computers via a coded entrance and self service equipment. 
The library service would like to install such equipment in a number of its libraries (potentially 5) to increase 
the amount of hours customers can use libraries.

150

21 Neighbourhoods
RFID - library self serve 

equipment - replacement 
project 

The equipment that allows customers to self serve when borrowing or returning books and other items has 
come to its end of life. They have been in service since 2012 and both the hardware and software are now 
obsolete. We have 9 machines - 3 in N1R, 2 in Heywood Library and 2 in Middleton library.

70

22 Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group 
To adequately maintain the property portfolio and ensure that the Council comply to any statutory, and Health 
& Safety regulations. The scheme also aims to reduce the maintenance backlog and improve the reduced 
property holding to accommodation standards. 

2,000 1,750 1,750

23 Neighbourhoods
Number One Riverside - 

revolving doors replacement
Replace existing revolving doors at Number One Riverside to increase access and reduce breakdowns. Create 
single point of entry for all users of the building reducing inequality and enhancing inclusivity. 

120

24 Neighbourhoods Burglary Reduction Scheme
Implement alley gating schemes and gating orders on alleys to reduce the number of burglaries and improve 
neighbourhood safety.

100 100 100

25 Neighbourhoods
Climate Emergency - Carbon 

Neutral

The Council has declared a climate emergency and will work towards becoming carbon neutral by 2038.  This 
investment of £5M over the next five years is a clear statement of intent that the Council takes this matter 
seriously and is prepared to invest in driving initiatives across the areas of energy, travel and transport, 
homes, workplaces and public buildings, consumption and production of resources  and our natural 
environment.

1,000 1,000 1,000

26 Neighbourhoods Townships Capital Programme
An annual allocation of Capital Funds allocated on a pro rata basis and agreed by each of the 4 Township 
Committees 400 400 400

30,745 26,686 10,485
* This information is exempt by virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
NEIGHBOURHOODS

P
age 21



NO. DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
 Budget
2020/21

£'000 

 Budget 
2021/22

£'000 

 Budget 
2022/23

£'000 

1 Public Health
Hollingworth Lake 

improvements
Installation of a high ropes course within the trees of the Promontory area of Hollingworth Lake.            300 

2 Public Health Leisure Centre Improvements

A number of large scale capital bids are being put forward to enhance and extend facilities at the RBC owned 
Leisure Facilities. The suggested improvements have been recommended by the operator Link4Life. To ensure 
the projects and their outcome are achievable, there is a requirement for more technical work to survey the 
buildings suitability for the projects proposed, to check costing are within the amount bid and to seek 
technical advice as to whether further improvement to the proposals can be made.

             20 

3 Public Health
Link4Life building alterations / 

additional equipment Heywood

Conversion of large community room on the ground floor which is divided into 2 by a moveable partition. This 
project would involve the conversion of one side of the room to a dedicated fitness studio for the provision of 
an upbeat boutique-style area  which will provide a dynamic workout combining mixed martial arts, intense 
cardio and strength training. Usage of the new facility is estimated at c.10,000 and will enhance the 
membership offer to current and new fitness members. 

           220 

4 Public Health
Link4Life building alterations / 

additional equipment Rochdale
Creation of a mezzanine floor at Rochdale Leisure Centre in the foyer area to allow an extension to the gym 
and an improved offer. 

           400 

5 Public Health Link4Life equipment
On-going update and replacement of leisure centre equipment across the borough. Funding to cover the 
prudential borrowing is paid from Link4Life to RBC via the contract fee.  This saving is built into contract / 
efficiencies with Link4Life.

388 288 360

6 Public Health
Replacement of Lake Bank 

Buildings at Hollingworth Lake
Development of new Lake Bank Activity Hub to replace existing Lake Bank Buildings at Hollingworth Lake.

3,000

4,328 288 360PUBLIC HEALTH

NO. DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SUMMARY AND KEY OBJECTIVES
 Budget
2020/21

£'000 

 Budget 
2021/22

£'000 

 Budget 
2022/23

£'000 
1 Resources HR & Payroll system Capital costs associated with purchase of a new HR & Payroll system.            151 

2 Resources Manchester Airport Investment
Rochdale Council investment in Manchester Airport initiatives in conjunction with the other nine GM 
authorities.

1,860 - -

2,011 - -RESOURCES

P
age 22



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 2nd December 2019
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Stuart Smith (Resources 
Directorate)

Public/Private Document Public

Finance Update Report

Executive Summary

To inform Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 
Council’s forecast 2019/20 financial position as at the end of September 2019.

1.1 The Finance Update Report contains detail of the following:

 The forecast Revenue position, is an overspend of £5.942m which is net 
of an expected refund from the Greater Manchester Combined Authority  
The refund will be used to offset any in year overspend, and it is intended 
that any unused amount will be transferred to the Equalisation Reserve. 

 A pressure of £6.700m relating to the Pooled Fund is requested to be 
funded from an additional contribution from the Equalisation Reserve. 

 An update of the Savings target of £0.135m, as part of the Revenue 
budget 2019/20.

 Forecast Capital spend of £121.322m after net re-phasing of £7.210m. 
 The Treasury Management Update in appendix G.

Recommendation

2.1 Cabinet notes the forecast 2019/20 budget positions for Revenue, Savings 
and Capital as at the end of September 2019.

2.2 Cabinet approves a £6.700m additional contribution to the pooled fund 
detailed in paragraph 4.1.3, noting £0.823m to be reduced off the 2020/21 
contribution.

2.3 Cabinet approves the Revenue Budget Pressure Fund requests for 2019/20 
totalling £0.091m detailed in section 4.1.4.

2.4 Cabinet approves the Capital funding switch detailed in 4.1.3.

2.5 Cabinet notes the net Capital re-phasing of £7.210m detailed in section 4.4.2.

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



2.6 Cabinet notes the Treasury Management update which is detailed in  
Appendix G.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1. Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 
authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring the financial 
resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 
Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early identification of variations 
against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action.

This report provides an overview of the forecast 2019/20 financial position for 
the Council and focuses on the position as at the end of September 2019.  

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Revenue Budget 2019/20

4.1.1. The budget set by Budget Council on 26th February 2019 was £216.221m. 

The Revenue Budget is £215.621m as at the end of September 2019 with no 
changes in this reporting period.

Approved by When Reason for change Amount (£m)
Budget Council Feb-19 Approved budget 216.221

Jul-19 Reduction in S31 relief -0.600
GRAND TOTAL 215.621

4.1.2 The overall position taking account of the projections currently being forecast 
by services as at the end of September 2019 is an overspend of £5.942m.

Please see Appendix A for details of budget allocations and forecast Revenue 
Outturn Position.

4.1.3 The major (≥ £0.250m) variations to controllable budget, by service, are 
detailed below:-

Adult Care: £1.233m Overspend mitigated by contribution from Pooled Budget

The Adult Care service is experiencing financial pressures from the number 
and costs of care packages for service users. There is a further pressure from 
the provision of statutory Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards assessments. 
These pressures are partially mitigated by in-year savings from staff turnover 
and vacancies.
The remaining net pressure of £1.233m for Adult Care budgets in 2019/20 will 
be wholly met by an additional contribution from the Health & Social Care 
pooled budget.

Page 24



Children’s Services - £6.707m Overspend with £3.607m being mitigated 
through the DSG Reserve

Children's Services are currently forecasting a pressure of £6.707m. 

£3.100m is attributable to external residential placements, with the 2018/19 
growth in cared for children continuing to be cared for in 2019/20.During the 
first two quarters of 2019/20 there has been a reduction in the number of 
cared for children which has reduced the forecast overspend. 

There is a £3.607m pressure on the Dedicated School Grant (DSG) within the 
High Needs block. The pressure is in relation to a continued rise in numbers 
of children with education health care plans and increasing numbers of 
children attending independent schools which is a high cost provision. The 
growth in numbers is a national trend and the current DSG pressure equates 
to 2% of the DSG 2019/20 allocation, this will put the DSG reserve into a 
deficit position and therefore will result in Rochdale Council being required to 
submit a 3 year recovery plan to the Department for Education at the end of 
the financial year to bring the reserve back into a surplus position.

Financial Control - £3.987m In-Year saving

The forecast in-year saving relates to an expected refund from the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority and interest savings. The interest savings 
are due to the borrowing requirement being funded through internal borrowing 
with nil cost or the forecast reduction in capital expenditure.

Neighbourhoods £0.250m Overspend

The Neighbourhoods Directorate is reporting a forecast in-year pressure of 
£0.250m.  This mainly reflects pressures on the Strategic Housing budget due 
to homelessness costs which are not fully covered by the Government 
subsidy. The Service are looking to address this issue, however, corporate 
funding has been earmarked to offset the pressure if necessary.

Resources - £0.256m In-Year saving

The service is reporting an in-year saving of £0.256m, which includes a 
pressure from the Legal Shared Service with Manchester City Council.  This 
pressure is being mitigated in 2019/20 by savings from staffing costs within 
the Directorate overall.  However, a significant amount of the 2019/20 staff 
savings have either been committed to the 2020/21 Savings Programme or 
are one year only, therefore, a request for Corporate Funding may be required 
in 2020/21 to managed this pressure which is likely to continue due to the 
growth in Children in Care.

Integrated Pooled Budget Contribution - £6.700m Overspend

The Health & Social Care (H&SC) Pooled Fund opening gap was £16.600m 
and as at the end of September the overall reported current financial pressure 

Page 25



was £14.400m. The £14.400m pressure includes a £3.000m overspend which 
is £1.800m on Health related budgets and £1.200m on Adult Social Care.

In 2018/19 the Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) entered 
into a formal pooled fund with a 2 year section 75 agreement which 
established the legal framework for the operation of the fund. During 2018/19 
the fund experienced significant pressure which resulted in both partners 
making additional in-year contributions with the overall funding of pressures 
being based on a 70:30 split. This ratio split being in line with the opening 
contribution from both organisations.

It has been agreed for 2019/20 in-year pressures will continue to be funded in-
line with this ratio and therefore, subject to Cabinet approval, the Council will 
make an additional in-year contribution to the 2019/20 pooled fund of £5.877m 
this being 30% of the opening pooled fund gap and 30% of current year 
monitoring pressures.

It’s proposed that the Council’s increased contribution will be met from the 
Equalisation Reserve, this reserve being established to smooth funding 
pressures whilst recurrent funding solutions are being implemented.

Once the Council and the CCG have made additional contributions, a 
£0.823m pressure will remain, it has been proposed that the Council will 
contribute an additional £0.823m to support delivery of the commissioning 
functions for 2019/20 with a corresponding reduction to the Council’s 
contribution in 2020/21. The Council will only make this contribution if the 
pooled fund is unable to identify alternative sources of funding or savings to 
bridge the remaining £0.823m pressure in 2019/20.

 
As part of the 2019/20 Estimates process, the risks associated with H&SC 
integration were considered and included, as part of the review of the 
adequacy of general balances and reserves.

Full detail of the current Revenue position for each Directorate and the Health 
& Social Pooled Fund can be found in Appendices B & C.

4.1.4 Budget Pressures

The Budget Pressure Fund for 2019/20 is £0.643m - £0.463m on-going and 
£0.180m one-off. 

The following budget pressure requests are subject to Cabinet Member 
approval:

Resources (£0.067m) pressure returned for 2019/20

£0.067m of funding has been returned relating to the Electoral reform budget 
pressure request agreed at July Cabinet. Cabinet Office grant funding is not 

Page 26



being reduced as previously expected in 2019/20. The on-going budget 
pressure request will now commence in 2020/21.

Economy £0.035m – One off 2019/20

A request of £0.035m one off funding in 2019/20 relates to the Asset 
Rationalisation Initiative, to fund the maintenance and running costs as a 
result of the delayed disposal of Council assets.

Economy £0.005m – Ongoing, increasing to £0.018k 2020/21

Budget pressures funding is requested by Economy Directorate to enable the 
application of a Market Factor Supplement to 4 posts within Estates and Asset 
Management Service, to enable recruitment to posts at a competitive rate 
within the regional jobs market and reduce the need for interim agency 
expenditure.  The posts are required in order to carry out a range of work 
including: property disposals, property management, landlord and tenant, 
valuation advice, property acquisitions, asset valuations, strategic asset 
management.

Neighbourhoods £0.016m – One off 2019/20

A budget pressure request has been made due to the closure of Heybrook 
School following a building issue. The budget pressure request is to cover the 
loss of income relating to school meals and additional transportation costs. 

Resources £0.035m- One off 2019/20 (£0.041m 2020/21, £0.041m 2021/22) 

A budget pressure request has been made for Legal Services to replace the 
Legal Case Management system. The cost of the new system will be 
approximately £0.035m. In order to implement the new system there is a 
requirement to employ a Project Manager. This staffing element will 
commence in April 2020 and will be £0.041m for 2020/21 and £0.041m in 
2021/22.  

If the above is approved there will be a balance in 2019/20 of £0.458m on-
going and £0.094m one-off.

4.2 Savings Update 2019/20
4.2.1 The total savings target for 2019/20 is £0.135m and Services have not 

identified any issues.

4.2.2 See Appendix D for the financial detail of Savings proposals.

4.3      Corporate Debt
The Council has a responsibility to collect income due and to recover 
outstanding debts owed. There are three main types of income which are 

Page 27



owed to the Council: Council Tax, Business Rates and sundry debts. Sundry 
debts include:

 Fees and charges raised as invoices by all Directorate of the Council, 
for services provides.

 Housing Benefit overpayments which occur as a result of a change in 
entitlement to benefit.

As at the end of September 2019 the total outstanding sundry debt is 
£14.790m, an increase of £2.590m from July 2019. This is due to an increase 
in volume of Adult Care invoices for residential care debt.

Please see appendix E for further details.

4.4      Capital Budget 2019/20

The current 2019/20 Capital Budget is £121.322m.  The table below shows a 
summary of the movements:

£m £m £m
CAPITAL BUDGET AT JULY 2019 128.532 66.533 26.430
Capital Rephasing adjustment 2018/19 - (0.200) -
Rephasing requested to end of September (7.210) 7.210
CAPITAL BUDGET AT SEPTEMBER 2019 121.322 73.543 26.430

2019/20 2021/222020/21

4.4.1 Capital Budget Changes

4.4.2 Capital Re-phasing

Summary of Sundry Debt as at September 2019 Totals (£m)
Balance of debt carried forward from 2018/19 10.950
Invoices raised less credit notes 38.705
Payments/adjustments (34.720)
Write offs (0.145)
Balance as at September 2019 14.790

Breakdown of outstanding balance
Fees and charges 9.611
Housing Benefit overpayments 5.179

Balance as at July 2019 12.200
Increase/(Reduction) 2.590

Page 28



Economy £6.061m

 £3.061m Town Centre Schemes due to various delays in schemes,
 £2.500m Heywood South/Junction 19 due to delays in the completion 

of the Spatial Framework,
 £0.500m Northern Gateway Feasibility & Study as this scheme links in 

with Heywood South/Junction 19 scheme.

Neighbourhoods Service £1.149m

 £0.480m for Asset Management Group as schemes are scheduled to 
commence in 2020/21,

 £0.450m New Cemetery Sites of rephasing is required for work being 
undertaken to replace the cremators at Rochdale Cemetery,

 £0.172m CCTV Upgrade as the scheme has been delayed to 2020/21,
 £0.041m Section 106 Environmental management to facilitate the 

completion of Bowlee pitch drainage once the season has come to a 
close,

 £0.006m Cashless System School Catering.

4.4.3 Capital Budget Funding Switch

Members are asked to approve the following capital budget funding switches.

Neighbourhoods Service

 £0.089m of 2019/20 budget is requested to be switched from Replacement 
Parks/Street Machinery to the Upgrade Play Equipment Scheme to support a 
programme of works which are required to bring play areas up to a good 
standard. 

Appendix F provides details of the Capital budget position for each Directorate 
and a graph showing the capital forecast spend for all Services.

4.4.4 Capital Receipts

The table following shows the forecast movements in the Capital Receipts 
Reserve during 2019/20, and provisionally for 2020/21 to 2021/22:

Page 29



2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

£m £m £m

Capital Receipts balance as at 1st April 2019 10.187 2.108 2.698

Use of Capital Receipts to fund 2019/20 Capital Programme, including prior year schemes 
rephased into 2019/20 (6.920) - -
Use of Capital Receipts to fund provisional 2020/21 and 2021/22 Capital Programmes, and 
2019/20 rephasing into future years - (0.010) 0.000

Earmarked use of receipts to fund other future commitments (3.654) (0.846) 0.000

Capital Receipts income 2.495 1.446 0.500

Forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts balance as at 31st March 2020 2.108 2.698 3.198

Description

The forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts Reserve balance as at the end of 
2021/22 is currently £3.198m.

4.5     Treasury Management

The overall Treasury position shows an in-year saving of £1.247m compared 
to the revised budget comprising:

 Reduced interest costs as borrowing deferred (reserves and balances used to 
fund the capital programme) - £0.596m

 Increased Investment income - £0.157m
 Reduced Minimum Revenue Provision due to rephasing of the capital 

programme from 2018/19 to the current year - £0.494m

  Full details can be found in Appendix G.

4.6 Alternatives considered

4.6.1 Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 
critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and 
are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. See Appendices A,B,C,D,E,F & G which provide an overview of budgets for 
Revenue, Health & Social Care Pool Budgets, Savings, Corporate Debt, 
Capital and Treasury Management detailed in section 4.

Page 30



Risk and Policy Implications

There are no major legal implications arising as a result of this report except 
to note that debts that are recoverable can be enforced by court action in 
accordance with the court procedure rules.

The use of reserves to address the pressures within the Pooled Fund is a 
one off solution which cannot be sustained into future years. This risk is 
currently being mitigated by the development and implementation of a 
savings programme to deliver a recurrent solution to the pooled fund 
pressures.

6.

Consultation

7. All services engage with the production of the service based financial 
information within this report. The Leadership Team, the Leader, Cabinet 
Member for Finance, and Opposition Portfolio holder for Finance have been 
informed of the forecast 2019/20 financial position of the Council and its 
implications for future years. The report is presented to the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 26th November 2019.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. For further information about this 
report or access to any 
background papers contact 
Stuart Smith

No1 Riverside Floor 2 

For Further Information Contact: Stuart Smith, 
Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
Tel : 01706 924196

Page 31

mailto:Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


APPENDIX A – REVENUE SUMMARY

GENERAL FUND REVENUE ACCOUNT SUMMARY 2019/20
CURRENT POSITION AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

TABLE 1

Directorate/ Detail
Budget 
Council

Virements/
Contingency Current Budget

Service and 
Corporate 

Uncontrollables

Current 
Controllable
Approved 

Net 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn

In Year 
Saving/

(Overspend)

Previous 
Monitoring 

Report (July 
Cabinet)

Movement 
Since July 
Cabinet

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Adult Care 15,415 1,143 16,558 4,047 12,511 12,511 - - -
Children's 21,585 5,805 27,390 19,110 8,280 11,380 (3,100) (3,275) 175
Economy 15,993 (115) 15,878 755 15,123 15,258 (135) (100) (35)
Neighbourhoods 52,413 2,710 55,123 1,281 53,842 54,092 (250) (206) (44)
Public Health and Wellbeing 8,206 287 8,493 1,889 6,604 6,604 - - -
Resources 8,222 (308) 7,914 (3,692) 11,606 11,350 256 (27) 283
TOTAL GENERAL SERVICES SPENDING 121,834 9,522 131,356 23,390 107,966 111,195 (3,229) (3,608) 379
Integrated Pool Budget Contribution 87,159 2,615 89,774 - 89,774 96,474 (6,700) (4,500) (2,200)
TOTAL POOLED BUDGETS 87,159 2,615 89,774 - 89,774 96,474 (6,700) (4,500) (2,200)
Finance Control: Corporately Held Budgets 4,139 (14,758) (10,619) (20,623) 10,004 6,017 3,987 877 3,110
Finance Control: Transformation Fund 1,719 2,748 4,467 - 4,467 4,467 - - -
Finance Control: Budget Pressures 1,370 (727) 643 - 643 643 - - -
TOTAL FINANCE CONTROL SPENDING 7,228 (12,737) (5,509) (20,623) 15,114 11,127 3,987 877 3,110

NET EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS 216,221 (600) 215,621 2,767 212,854 218,796 (5,942) (7,231) 1,289

P
age 32



APPENDIX B – SERVICES REVENUE

REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

Service: ADULT CARE DIRECTORATE 
Overall Risk Rating:                    LOW

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk Area 
RAG rating

Budget 
Fixing Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Budget

Forecast 
Spend 19/20

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

Change 
from 

Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Management GREEN 12,348 13,490 (406) 13,084 13,053 31 (28)
Neighbourhoods RED 25,450 68,389 (36,043) 32,346 33,861 (1,515) 210
Boroughwide Services RED 14,747 7,334 (4,749) 2,585 2,595 (10) (45)
In House Provider Services GREEN 636 3,208 (1,984) 1,224 1,026 198 26
Governance Business Support & Home 
Improvement Agency

GREEN 931 2,472 (1,214) 1,258 1,105 153 (6)

Greater Manchester Health & Social Care 
Transformation Fund

GREEN 0 2,533 (2,533) 0 0 0 0

Commissioning GREEN 2,511 3,469 (1,015) 2,454 2,389 65 13
Statutory Functions AMBER 552 646 (23) 623 778 (155) (3)
SUB TOTAL 57,175 101,541 (47,967) 53,574 54,807 (1,233) 167
Contribution from Pooled Budget GREEN (44,882) 0 (41,063) (41,063) (42,296) 1,233 (167)

REVISED SUB TOTAL 12,293 101,541 (89,030) 12,511 12,511 0 0

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
UNCONTROLLABLE

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges GREEN 2,966 5,866 (1,819) 4,047 4,047 0 0

SUB TOTAL 2,966 5,866 (1,819) 4,047 4,047 0 0

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 15,259 107,407 (90,849) 16,558 16,558 0 0

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

31

(1,515)

(10)

198

153

65

(155)

1,233

TOTAL 0

Financial Management Update

Commissioning:-  In-year savings resulting from staff turnover and vacancies

The Adult Care service is experiencing financial pressures from the number and costs of care packages for service users. There is a further pressure from the 
provision of statutory Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards assessments. These pressures are partially mitigated by in-year savings from staff turnover and 
vacancies.
The remaining net pressure of £1.233m for Adult Care budgets in 2019/20 will be wholly met by an additional contribution from the Health & Social Care pooled 
budget.

Contribution from Pooled Budget:- The net pressure from Adult Social Care budgets in 2019/20 will be wholly met by an additional contribution 
from the Health and Social Care pooled budget

Statutory Functions:- Pressure from the costs of provision of Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards assessments

Neighbourhoods:- Pressure from the number and costs of care packages, exceeding the available budget, including the effect of purchasing an 
additional day of care as 2019/20 is a leap year. This is partially mitigated by savings due to staff turnover and vacancies.
Additional costs are also being incurred for Service Users transferred to community settings from long stay hospitals under the Transforming Care 
programme.

In House Provider Services:-  In-year savings resulting from staff turnover and vacancies

Management :- In-year savings resulting from staff turnover and vacancies

Governance Business Support & Home Improvement Agency :-  In-year savings resulting from staff turnover and vacancies

Boroughwide Services:- Pressure from the number and costs of care packages, exceeding the available budget, including the effect of 
purchasing an additional day of care as 2019/20 is a leap year. This is partially mitigated by savings due to staff turnover and vacancies

Page 33



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

Service: CHILDREN'S DIRECTORATE
Overall Risk Rating:                    HIGH

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk Area 
RAG rating

Budget 
Fixing 

Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current Approved 
Income Budget

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

Change 
from 

Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

First Response RED 1,741 1,949 0 1,949 1,949 0 0
Cared for Children RED 22,149 24,220 (724) 23,496 26,596 (3,100) 175
Safeguarding Children Unit AMBER 781 1,188 (212) 976 976 0 0
Youth Offending Team AMBER 220 1,226 (969) 257 257 0 0
Child Protection & Care Proceedings RED 2,077 2,103 0 2,103 2,103 0 0
Advice and Screening RED 330 635 (241) 394 394 0 0
Practice Improvement GREEN 2,078 2,821 (360) 2,461 2,461 0 0
Sure Start GREEN 3,460 21,269 (17,501) 3,768 3,768 0 0
School Support GREEN 1,460 29,257 (27,809) 1,448 1,448 0 0
Special Educational Needs and Disability AMBER 5,583 21,952 (15,880) 6,072 9,679 (3,607) (242)
Youth Service GREEN 45 1,271 (1,101) 170 170 0 0
Management and Administration GREEN (120) 2,927 (261) 2,666 2,666 0 0
Funding Allocated to Schools GREEN 0 194,813 (194,800) 13 13 0 0
Early Help GREEN 405 1,494 (1,302) 192 192 0 0
SUB TOTAL 40,209 307,125 (261,160) 45,965 52,672 (6,707) (67)
Contribution from Pooled Budget (36,698) 0 (41,292) (41,292) (41,292) 0 0
Contribution from DSG Reserve 0 3,607 0 3,607 0 3,607
REVISED SUB TOTAL 3,511 310,732 (302,452) 8,280 11,380 (3,100) (67)

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
UNCONTROLLABLE

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges

GREEN 21,585 23,329 (4,219) 19,110 19,110 0 0

SUB TOTAL 21,585 23,329 (4,219) 19,110 19,110 0 0

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

(3,100)

(3,607)

3,607

(3,100)

Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND):- Dedicated School Grant pressure on the High needs block of £3,607m, this is attributable to a 
continued rise in numbers of children with an Education health care plan (EHCP) and projected growth for the 2019/20 academic year. Due to 
demand for special school places there has been an increase in the use of independent schools, the independent schools are a high cost provision, 
and costs are increasing due to market demand.

TOTAL

Cared for Children:- The pressure from  2018/19 is continuing into 2019/20 for looked after children and there continues to be a reliance on high 
cost external residential placements. 

Contribution from DSG Reserve:- The net pressure from Special Education Needs and Disability (SEND) will be funded from the DSG Reserve.

Children's Services are currently forecasting a pressure of £6.707m. £3.100m is attributable to external residential placements, with the 2018/19 growth in cared 
for children continuing to be cared for in 2019/20. Throughout the first two quarters of 2019/20 there has been a reduction in the number of cared for children 
which has reduced the forecast overspend. 

There is a £3.607m pressure on the Dedicated School Grant (DSG) within the High Needs block. The pressure is in relation to a continued rise in numbers of 
children with education health care plans and increasing numbers of children attending independent schools which is a high cost provision. The growth in 
numbers is a national trend and the current DSG pressure equates to 2% of the DSG 2019/20 allocation, this will put the DSG reserve into a deficit position and 
therefore will result in Rochdale Council being required to submit a 3 year recovery plan to the Department for Education at the end of the financial year to bring 
the reserve back into a surplus position.

Financial Management Update

Page 34



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

Service: ECONOMY DIRECTORATE
Overall Risk Rating: MEDIUM

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk 
Area RAG 

rating

Budget 
Fixing 

Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

Change 
from 

Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Planning and Building Control RED 537 3,068 (2,350) 718 718 0 678
Passenger Transport Levy GREEN 15,281 14,747 0 14,747 14,747 0 14,747
Economic Development GREEN 1,074 1,956 (820) 1,136 1,136 0 1,086
Properties GREEN 9 2,241 (2,285) (44) 56 (100) 56
Asset Rationalisation RED (18) (18) 0 (18) 17 (35) (18)
Property Growth Fund AMBER (1,471) 1,667 (3,083) (1,416) (1,416) 0 (1,416)
SUB TOTAL 15,412 23,661 (8,538) 15,123 15,258 (135) 15,133

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
UNCONTROLLABLE

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges

GREEN 581 1,669 (914) 755 755 0 0

SUB TOTAL 581 1,669 (914) 755 755 0 0

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 15,993 25,330.00 (9,452) 15,878 16,013 (135) 15,133

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

(100)

(35)

(135)

Financial Management Update
The Economy Directorate is reporting an in-year pressure of £0.135m.  This includes pressures in relation to Industrial Estates as a result of 
underachieved savings and rental income.  A new project team has been established to review the Commercial & Industrial Estate with a view 
to increasing income levels; progress in this area will be reviewed and reported later in the financial year.  There is also a pressure in relation 
to targeted savings from Asset Rationalisation that will not be achieved in 2019/20 and one year only budget pressures funding has been 
requested for this.

TOTAL

Properties :- Pressures within Industrial Estates as a result of underachieved savings and rental income.

Asset Rationalisation :- The targeted saving for 2019/20 relating to running costs/maintenance as a result of further disposal of 
assets will not be achieved. A one-year only budget pressure request has been made.

Page 35



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

Service: NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE

Overall Risk Rating:     HIGH

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk 
Area RAG 

rating

Budget 
Fixing 

Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 

Income Budget

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

Change from 
Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Waste Disposal Levy RED 15,945 15,874 0 15,874 15,874 0 0
Facilities Management RED 2,065 10,519 (7,927) 2,592 2,642 (50) (50)
Environmental Management GREEN 10,954 18,032 (6,794) 11,238 11,238 0 0
ICT Service  AMBER 4,098 6,096 (1,616) 4,480 4,480 0 0
Coroners RED 693 2,527 (1,902) 625 625 0 0
Community & Townships AMBER 3,479 6,150 (2,112) 4,038 3,963 75 75
Public Protection AMBER 622 1,926 (1,252) 674 674 0 0
Policy, Perform & Improvement GREEN 272 287 0 287 287 0 0
Communications & Digital Services Team GREEN 531 826 (14) 812 812 0 0
Customer Access RED 1,614 1,693 (61) 1,632 1,632 0 0
Strategic Housing RED 2,306 3,742 (996) 2,746 3,021 (275) (69)
AGMA Contributions GREEN 627 656 (29) 627 627 0 0
Place Based GREEN 1 456 (30) 426 426 0 0
Highways and Engineering RED 3,245 6,278 (2,718) 3,560 3,560 0 0
Properties RED 313 2,978 (2,590) 388 388 0 0
Street Lighting RED 3,545 6,298 (2,455) 3,843 3,843 0 0
SUB TOTAL 50,310 84,338 (30,496) 53,842 54,092 (250) (44)

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
UNCONTROLLABLE

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges

GREEN 2,104 18,911 (17,630) 1,281 1,281 0 0

SUB TOTAL 2,104 18,911 (17,630) 1,281 1,281 0 0

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 52,414 103,249 (48,126) 55,123 55,373 (250) (44)

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

(50)

75

(275)

(250)

Financial Management Update

Strategic Housing :- Pressure in respect of housing benefit and homelessness costs which are not fully covered by Government 
subsidy. The Service are looking to mitigate this pressure however, Corporate funding has been earmarked to address any 
shortfall.

The Neighbourhoods Directorate is reporting a forecast in-year pressure of £0.250m.  This mainly reflects pressures on the Strategic Housing 
budget due to homelessness costs which are not fully covered by the Government subsidy. The Service are looking to address this issue, 
however, Corporate funding has been earmarked to offset the pressure if necessary.

Facilities Management:-  Pressure relating to repairs and maintenance of the Town Hall. Costs will be reviewed in line with 
future proposals for the Town Hall.

TOTAL

Community & Townships:-   In-year saving due to vacant posts and additional income on Registrars

Page 36



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

Service: PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELLBEING DIRECTORATE
Overall Risk Rating:                                   LOW

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk 
Area RAG 

rating

Budget 
Fixing 

Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation - 
Forecast spend 

to Current 
Budget

Change 
from 

Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Sexual Health GREEN 1,681 3,602 (1,976) 1,626 1,626 0 0
NHS Health Checks GREEN 262 262 0 262 262 0 0
Public Health Advice GREEN 69 29 0 29 29 0 0
Obesity and Physical Activity GREEN 581 606 0 606 606 0 0
Substance Misuse GREEN 2,851 3,151 (156) 2,995 2,995 0 0
Smoking and Tobacco GREEN 34 34 0 34 34 0 0
Children 0-19 Public Health Programme GREEN 6,539 6,538 0 6,538 6,538 0 0
Mental Health and Wellbeing GREEN 40 41 0 41 41 0 0
Other Public Health Commissioning GREEN 3,175 3,076 0 3,076 3,076 0 0
Health Protection GREEN 290 292 0 292 292 0 0
Public Health Staffing and Non Staffing GREEN 1,230 1,402 105 1,507 1,507 0 0
Client Services - Link4Life GREEN 2,595 3,084 (498) 2,586 2,586 0 0
SUB TOTAL 19,347 22,117 (2,525) 19,592 19,592 0 0
Contribution from Pooled Budget (12,983) 0 (12,988) (12,988) (12,988) 0 0
REVISED SUB TOTAL 6,364 22,117 (15,513) 6,604 6,604 0 0

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
UNCONTROLLABLE

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges

GREEN 1,841 1,889 0 1,889 1,889 0 0

SUB TOTAL 1,841 1,889 0 1,889 1,889 0 0

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 8,205 24,006 (15,513) 8,493 8,493 0 0

Financial Management Update
The Public Health Service is forecast to incur expenditure in line with the available budget.

Page 37



REVENUE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

Service: RESOURCES DIRECTORATE

Overall Risk Rating: LOW

Table 1. Financial Management Forecast

Area of Service

Major Risk 
Area RAG 

rating

Budget 
Fixing 

Council

Current 
Approved 

Expenditure 
Budget

Current 
Approved 
Income 
Budget

Current 
Approved       

Net              
Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation - 
Forecast 
spend to 
Current 
Budget

Change 
from 

Previous 
Report

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
CONTROLLABLE BUDGETS

Finance Services AMBER 2,040 2,284 (344) 1,940 1,920 20 20
Other Managed Budgets GREEN 2,274 2,942 (269) 2,673 2,123 390 94
Revenues & Benefits RED 555 65,645 (64,577) 1,068 1,054 14 14
Legal Services RED 1,623 2,134 (458) 1,676 2,076 (240) 160
Human Resources AMBER 1,435 2,365 (640) 1,725 1,691 34 (0)
Internal Audit GREEN 635 646 (40) 606 576 30 0
Governance AMBER 1,836 2,320 (402) 1,918 1,910 8 (5)
SUB TOTAL 10,398 78,336 (66,730) 11,606 11,350 256 283

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
UNCONTROLLABLE

Service, Corporate and Support Service 
Charges

GREEN (2,176) 8,589 (12,281) (3,692) (3,692) 0 0

SUB TOTAL (2,176) 8,589 (12,281) (3,692) (3,692) 0 0

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGET 8,222 86,925 (79,011) 7,914 7,658 256 283

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000
20

390

14

(240)

34

Internal Audit:- In-year savings mainly due to staffing. 30

8
256

Financial Management Update
The service is reporting an in-year saving of £0.256m, which includes a pressure within the Legal Shared Service with Manchester City 
Council, caused by increased Care Applications over and above the usually anticipated level.  This pressure is being mitigated in 2019/20 by 
savings from staffing costs within the Directorate overall.

Governance:-  In-year savings mainly due to staffing.

Other Managed Budgets:- In-year savings as a result of vacant posts at Leadership and Head of Service level, plus other 
temporary arrangements and one-off savings in 2019/20.

Revenues and Benefits:- In-year savings mainly due to staffing.

Legal Services:-  Pressure within the Shared Legal Service with Manchester City Council, which is a result of increased Care 
Applications over and above the usually anticipated level.  This pressure links to the growth in Children in Care, and once work 
has been completed with colleagues at Manchester City Council to fully understand this pressure, a request for Corporate 
funding will be made.

TOTAL

Human Resources:- In-year savings mainly due to staffing.

Finance Services:- In-year savings mainly due to staffing.

Page 38



APPENDIX C – HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE POOLED FUND

Health and Social Care Pooled Budget 2019/20
2019/20 
Budget

2019/20 
Forecast Variance Narrative

September Monitoring position £m's £m's £m's
Adults' Services
Management, Support and 
Commissioning 3.5 3.5 0.0

Adults, Older People and Physical 
Disability 41.9 42.7 (0.8)

Increase in expensive Residential/ Community 
Placements (£0.9m). Underperformance on Durnford 
Dermatology CAT’s (-£0.1m).

Learning Disability / Mental Health 53.7 54.4 (0.7)

Expensive Residential/ Community Placements 
(£0.3m).
Additional patients within specialist rehab beds and 
increased observations for an LD patient (£0.4m).

Acute Health Care 117.0 118.1 (1.1) Pressure with Pennine Acute on non-elective.

Primary Care - Prescribing 29.4 29.4 0.0

Other Services 6.6 6.6 0.0

Adult Public Health 8.0 8.0 0.0
Total Adult Pooled Services 260.1 262.7 (2.6)
Children's Services
Management, Support and 
Commissioning 4.3 4.3 0.0

Children's Early Intervention 6.2 6.2 0.0

Health Community Services 5.8 5.8 0.0

Learning Disability / Mental Health 6.7 6.7 0.0

Special Educational Needs 4.0 4.0 0.0

Acute Health Care 22.7 23.1 (0.4) Pressure with Pennine Acute on non-elective.

Children 0-19 Public Health 5.0 5.0 0.0

Cared for Children and 
Safeguarding 26.7 26.7 0.0

Primary Care - Prescribing 7.8 7.8 0.0

Other Services 1.5 1.5 0.0

Total Children's Pooled Services 90.7 91.1 (0.4)

Total Health and Social Care 
Pooled Budgets 350.8 353.8 3.0

Contribution from Partners
CCG (249.6) (249.6) 0.0

LA (89.8) (89.8) 0.0
Total Contributions (339.4) (339.4) 0.0
Revised Gap 11.4 14.4 3.0

Page 39



APPENDIX D – SAVINGS

SAVINGS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

Table 1. 2019/20 Saving Proposals approved at Budget Council
Savings 

Reference
Service Savings Target Achieved On-Target Mitigating 

Actions
Balance to 
Address

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

NH-2019-20-22 Neighbourhoods (100) (100) 0 0 0

NH-2019-20-24 Neighbourhoods (35) (30) 0 (5) 0

(135) (130) 0 (5) 0
0

(135) (130) 0 (5) 0Total

Nature of Saving

Update on achievement of savings, which have not been achieved or have been mitigated
Citizen Advice Bureau contract has been successfully reduced by £30k, the remaining £5k has been mitigated elsewhere within Neighbourhoods.

Review of the budget for the provision of social and welfare advice and legal services

Sub Total Neighbourhoods

Grant Funded Community Centres

P
age 40



APPENDIX E – CORPORATE DEBT

Table 1. Fees and Charges outstanding
 31-Jul-19 30-Sep-19 Movement
Age of Debt £m £m £m
2019/20 4.587 7.302 2.715

 
2018/19 1.565 1.388 (0.177)
2017/18 0.473 0.455 (0.018)
2016/17 0.263 0.253 (0.010)
2015/16 0.060 0.056 (0.004)
2014/15 0.078 0.075 (0.003)
2013/14 and prior years 0.087 0.082 (0.005)
Subtotal from previous years 2.526 2.309 (0.217)

 
Total 7.113 9.611 2.498
Table 2. Housing Benefit overpayments outstanding
 31-Jul-19 30-Sep-19 Movement
Age of Debt £m £m £m
2019/20 0.451 0.691 0.240

 

2018/19 0.905 0.858 (0.047)
2017/18 1.070 1.035 (0.035)
2016/17 0.654 0.635 (0.019)
2015/16 0.866 0.848 (0.018)
2014/15 0.383 0.373 (0.010)
2013/14 and prior years 0.758 0.739 (0.019)
Subtotal from previous years 4.636 4.488 (0.148)

Total 5.087 5.179 0.092
Grand Total 12.200 14.790 2.590

Fees and Charges Overview
The volume of fees and charges being raised has increased significantly in 2019/20 due to 
the number of Adult Care invoices being raised for residential care debt. Invoices are issued 
every 4 weeks in arrears and this has created a significant amount of customer contact 
from the person receiving care or their carer. As at the end of September, £4.479m worth 
of debt has been raised for Adult Care residential debt, of which £4.084m has been 
recovered to date.

Of the overall debt outstanding, £5.286m was overdue on 1st September. This includes 
£2.215m from invoices issued to the NHS and £0.743m from invoices issued to schools and 
academies. 

Page 41



Housing Benefit Overpayment Overview
£2.674m of the outstanding debt is currently being recovered by reducing ongoing Housing 
Benefit payments. As working-age Housing Benefit recipient’s transition to Universal Credit, 
the ongoing recovery from Housing Benefit has to stop and an invoice issued to the 
customer. The Council can request that the Department for Work and Pensions recover 
from some ongoing Universal Credit cases.

Page 42



APPENDIX F – SERVICES CAPITAL

CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

Service: ADULT CARE DIRECTORATE 

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2019/20

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation 2020/21
Capital 

Programme

2021/22
Capital 

Programme

Total Total Scheme 
Spend to Date

Including 
Current Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
293 0 293 293 0 0 0 293 497 497

2,851 0 2,851 2,851 0 2,440 2,440 7,731
3,144 0 3,144 3,144 0 2,440 2,440 8,024 497 497

Annual allocation

Capital Scheme

Better Care Fund
Disabled Facilities Grant
TOTAL

Financial Management Update 

No variance to the programme is currently forecast.

P
age 43



CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

Service: CHILDREN'S DIRECTORATE

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2019/20

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation 2020/21
Capital 

Programme

2021/22
Capital 

Programme

Total Total Scheme 
Spend to Date

Including 
Current Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
247 (222) 25 25 0 222 0 247 978 1,200

1,629 8 1,637 1,637 0 483 483 2,603
19 0 19 19 0 0 0 19 516 516

18,663 2,878 21,541 21,541 0 18,005 5,200 44,746
28 0 28 28 0 0 0 28 1,301 1,301

4,584 (1,303) 3,281 3,281 0 2,833 1,833 7,947
85 0 85 85 0 0 0 85 85 85

205 0 205 205 0 0 0 205 205 205
25,460 1,361 26,821 26,821 0 21,543 7,516 55,880 3,085 3,307

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Financial Management Update

No variance to the programme is currently forecast.

TOTAL

Capital Scheme

New Place Planning
Schools Access

Special Provision Capital Fund
Healthy Pupils Capital Fund
Schools Cap Condition Programme

Early Years Capital Grant

Aiming High For Disabled Child
Devolved Formula Capital

P
age 44



CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

Service: ECONOMY DIRECTORATE

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2019/20

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation 2020/21
Capital 

Programme

2021/22
Capital 

Programme

Total Total Scheme 
Spend to Date

Including 
Current Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
Definitive ROW Improvement 55 0 55 55 0 0 0 55 115 115
P & R Capital Schemes 8 0 8 8 0 0 0 8 220 220
Town Centre Schemes 11,997 (4,175) 7,822 4,761 3,061 7,614 9,870 25,306 22,450 39,934
River Roch Flood Storage 4,757 (4,157) 600 600 0 5,757 1,600 7,957 793 8,150
Rochdale Gateways 57 0 57 57 0 0 0 57 60 60
Stakehill Industrial Estate 97 0 97 97 0 0 0 97 143 143
Asset Development Fund 2,921 0 2,921 2,921 0 0 0 2,921 4,000 4,000
Property Growth Fund 44,286 0 44,286 44,286 0 10,000 0 54,286 80,000 90,000
East Lancashire Railway 644 0 644 644 0 50 0 694 800 850
Lower Falinge 9 0 9 9 0 0 0 9 45 45

3,000 (200) 2,800 300 2,500 0 0 2,800 2,800 2,800
200 200 400 400 0 200 0 600 700 900
600 0 600 100 500 0 0 600 600 600
50 0 50 50 0 0 0 50 50 50
50 0 50 50 0 0 0 50 50 50
50 0 50 50 0 50 0 100 50 100
0 22 22 22 0 0 0 22 22 22

68,781 (8,310) 60,471 54,410 6,061 23,671 11,470 95,612 113,806 148,947

Variation
2019/20 

Programme
2020/21 

Programme

2021/22
Onwards

Programme
 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

Town Centre Schemes 3,061 (3,061) 3,061
Heywood South/Junction 19 2,500 (2,500) 2,500
Northern Gateway Feasibility & 500 (500) 500

6,061 (6,061) 6,061 0

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

TOTAL

Mixed Rephase Request

Town Centre Schemes - See Town Centre Schemes detailed sheet on the next page.

Capital Scheme

Northern Gateway Feasibility & Study

TOTAL

Table 2. Programme Changes Requested in Report

Capital Scheme

Funding
Source

Explanation of Variance

Heywood South/Junction 19
Railway Strategy Park & Ride

Pennine Holl Lake Feasibility
Springfield Park Master Plan
Metrolink Feasibility
Birch Fountain & Horse Trough-Middleton

Borrowing Rephase Request
Capital Receipts Rephase Request

3,061

TOTAL

6,061

Northern Gateway Feasibility & Study: Scheme linked to Heywood South/J19. 
Delays in the completion of the Spatial Framework; scheme will now commence Summer 2020, majority of spend will occur in 2020/21.

500

2,500Heywood South/Junction 19: Delays in the completion of the Spatial Framework; scheme will now commence Summer 2020, majority of spend will 
occur in 2020/21

P
age 45



AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

Service: TOWN CENTRE SCHEMES

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2019/20

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend 

2019/20

Variation 2020/21
Capital 

Programme

2021/22
Capital 

Programme

Total Total Scheme 
Spend to Date

Including 
Current Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

121 125 246 246 0 0 0 246 1,935 1,935
80 (47) 33 33 0 0 0 33 155 155

658 0 658 458 200 0 0 658 9,599 9,599
1,168 0 1,168 992 176 3,024 0 4,192 2,510 5,534

303 0 303 303 0 0 0 303 1,855 1,855
3,838 (3,500) 338 338 0 0 3,500 3,838 500 4,000

559 0 559 359 200 250 150 959 1,121 1,521
615 0 615 615 0 0 0 615 806 806

1,715 (800) 915 915 0 1,100 0 2,015 983 2,083
25 0 25 25 0 25 0 50 25 50
25 0 25 25 0 0 0 25 25 25
25 0 25 25 0 0 0 25 25 25

500 0 500 250 250 1,000 1,000 2,500 500 2,500
1,005 0 1,005 0 1,005 245 0 1,250 1,005 1,250

50 0 50 50 0 500 2,000 2,550 50 2,550
1,060 0 1,060 0 1,060 970 2,970 5,000 1,060 5,000

250 47 297 127 170 500 250 1,047 297 1,047
11,997 (4,175) 7,822 4,761 3,061 7,614 9,870 25,306 22,450 39,934

Variation
2019/20 

Programme
2020/21 

Programme

2021/22
Onwards

Programme
 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

200 (200) 200
176 (176) 176
200 (200) 200
250 (250) 250

1,005 (1,005) 1,005
1,060 (1,060) 1,060

170 (170) 170
3,061 (3,061) 3,061 0

Town Hall Square PH2
Drake Street Phase 2
Town Centre Schemes 2016/17

Town Centre Residential Strategy
Town Centre Purchases

Milkstone Road Master Plan

Borrowing
RCCO

Borrowing
Borrowing

Rochdale Town Centre 3 Year Strategy

Table 2. Programme Changes Requested in Report

TOTAL

Capital Scheme

Funding
Source

Station Car Parking
Town Centre East Feasibility
Town Hall Adaptation and Restoration

Capital Scheme

Middleton Town Centre Phase 3

Rochdale Market

Hopwood Hall Refurbishment
Middleton Masterplan
Heywood Masterplan
Town Centre Residential Strategy
Town Centre Purchases
Rochdale Riverside Phase 2
Town Centre Capital Programme
Milkstone Road Master Plan

Explanation of Variance

Borrowing
Rephase Request
Rephase Request

BorrowingTown Centre East Feasibility

Town Centre Capital Programme

Drake Street Phase 2 Borrowing Rephase Request

TOTAL

Town Hall Adaptation and Restoration

Rephase Request
Rephase Request

Rephase Request
Rephase Request

P
age 46



Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000
200

176

200

250

1,005

1,060

170

3,061

Milkstone Road Master Plan: Additional external funding (approx. £125k) has been secured from Transport for Greater Manchester and GM Stations Alliance towards 
this master planning work thus reducing the scale of forecasted expenditure in 2019/20.  
It is proposed to roll forward budget into 2020/21 to undertake more detailed feasibility and viability work once the masterplan has been agreed.  

Drake Street Phase 2: The Partnership Schemes in Conservation Areas (PSiCA) grant programme, part of the Drake Street Heritage Action Zone, has slipped back, the 
bulk of the expenditure will now fall within 2020/2021

Town Centre East Feasibility: Rephase £200k into 2020/21 to cover anticipated future fees on scheme

Town Hall Adaptation and Restoration: Delays in starting scheme, work due to commence in 20/21.

TOTAL

Town Centre Capital Programme: Rephase requested to align with the objectives of the 2020/21 Capital Programme

Town Centre Residential Strategy: Scheme delayed awaiting completion of an updated Town Centre Traffic model; expected by the end of 2019. 
Project will continue into 2020/21.
Discussions are ongoing to secure alternative sources of funding towards the project from GMCA and Homes England to support early delivery of key sites.    

Town Centre Purchases: Rephase requested to align with the objectives of the 2020/21 Capital Programme

P
age 47



CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

Service: NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2019/20

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend

2019/20

Variation 2020/21
Capital 

Programme

2021/22
Capital 

Programme

Total Total Scheme 
Spend to Date

Including 
Current Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
11 0 11 11 0 0 0 11 80 80

279 0 279 279 0 260 260 799
296 354 650 650 0 0 0 650
524 0 524 524 0 500 500 1,524

1,143 (354) 789 789 0 0 0 789 789 789
551 (130) 421 421 0 400 400 1,221
882 0 882 882 0 800 800 2,482 10,954 12,554
74 0 74 74 0 0 0 74 5,203 5,203
33 (33) 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,387 1,387

602 33 635 185 450 0 0 635 2,590 3,040
199 0 199 110 89 120 120 439
80 0 80 80 0 0 0 80

188 0 188 188 0 80 80 348 90 250
1,293 49 1,342 1,301 41 20 0 1,362

151 32 183 183 0 0 0 183
159 0 159 248 (89) 75 75 309

3,182 0 3,182 3,182 0 877 877 4,936
358 0 358 358 0 360 360 1,078
571 (521) 50 50 0 521 0 571 778 1,299

2,341 500 2,841 2,361 480 2,000 1,750 6,591
2,067 0 2,067 2,067 0 1,967 1,967 6,001

413 76 489 489 0 0 0 489
100 0 100 100 0 100 100 300
685 0 685 685 0 0 0 685 779 779

1,177 0 1,177 1,177 0 0 0 1,177 1,181 1,181
878 0 878 878 0 0 0 878 6,016 6,016
705 0 705 705 0 0 0 705 1,158 1,158
43 0 43 43 0 0 0 43 51 51

1,538 0 1,538 1,538 0 1,200 0 2,738 2,610 3,810
130 0 130 130 0 0 0 130 150 150
199 0 199 199 0 0 0 199 240 240

6 0 6 0 6 0 0 6 0 6
25 0 25 25 0 0 0 25 25 25
50 0 50 50 0 58 65 173 50 173

2,000 0 2,000 2,000 0 1,000 1,000 4,000 2,000 4,000
856 0 856 856 0 468 150 1,474 856 1,474
172 0 172 0 172 0 0 172 0 172
50 0 50 50 0 50 0 100 50 100

3,844 567 4,411 4,411 0 433 0 4,844 11,567 12,000
928 0 928 928 0 522 0 1,450 928 1,450

29,384 (28) 29,356 28,207 1,149 11,811 8,504 49,671 55,568 63,423

Annual Allocation

Highway Investment Programme

Housing Standards Fund

Dippy Exhibition Equipment
Allotments 2017-18 Manifesto Funding
Accelerated Housing
Customer Transformation Programme
CCTV Upgrade
Town Centre Signage

Bowlee Free School

Capital Scheme

Property Transfers From Townships

Travellers Authorised Stopping Site
Car Parking Machines
Cashless System School Catering

Waste Bin Replacement Programme
Waste Services Investment

New Cemetery Sites
Replacement Parks/Street Machinery
Rights Of Way
Rochdale Cemetery Lodge Repair
Section 106 - Environmental Management

Vehicle Replacement Programme

Additional Highways Funding

Compulsory Purchase Order Programme

Armed Forces
ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme

ICT Programmes (Staff)
Windows 10
Townships Capital Programme

Local Transport Plan

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation
Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

J19 Feasibility

Asset Management Group

Townships Capital - Highways
Burglary Reduction Scheme
Energy Efficiency Schemes
Coroners Service accommodation

Annual Allocation
Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

Townships Capital - Environmental Management
Upgrade Play Equipment

Annual Allocation

Annual Allocation

TOTAL

Kirkholt Investment
Mercury Abatement Scheme

ICT Data Centre

P
age 48



Table 2. Programme Changes Requested in Report

Variation
2019/20 

Programme
2020/21 

Programme

2021/22
Onwards

Programme
 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000

450 (450) 450
89 (89)
41 (41) 41

(89) 89
480 (480) 480

6 (6) 6
172 (172) 172

TOTAL 1,149 (1,149) 1,149 0

Brief Explanation of Major Variances £'000

TOTAL

CCTV Upgrade - Delay in project. Implementation will now be 20/21
172

Cashless System School Catering - Request to rephase to 20/21

New Cemetery Sites

Asset Management Group

Borrowing

Capital Scheme

1,149

Funding
Source

Explanation of Variance

Borrowing
External

CCTV Upgrade

6

480
Asset Management Group - This relates to a number of schemes that are not scheduled to start until early 2020/21.

(89)

41Section 106 - Environmental Management - A request is made to rephase budget into 2020/21 to facilitate the completion of Bowlee pitch drainage works 
once the 2019/20 football season has come to a close.

Upgrade Play Equipment - A request is made to vire budget from Replacement Parks/Street Machinery to Upgrade Play Equipment to support a programme of 
works which are required to bring play areas up to a good standard in the shortest period of time.

Funding Switch
Rephase Request

89

450New Cemetery Sites - A request is made to rephase budget into 2020/21 in advance of work being undertaken to replace the cremators at Rochdale 
Cemetery.

Replacement Parks/Street Machinery - A request is made to vire budget from Replacement Parks/Street Machinery to Upgrade Play Equipment to support a 
programme of works which are required to bring play areas up to a good standard in the shortest period of time.

Rephase Request
Funding Switch

Rephase Request

Borrowing
Cashless System School Catering Invest to Save Rephase Request

Borrowing Rephase Request

Borrowing

Replacement Parks/Street Machinery
Section 106 - Environmental Management
Upgrade Play Equipment

P
age 49



CAPITAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STATEMENT
AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2019

Service: RESOURCES DIRECTORATE

Table 1. Capital Programme Requirement A B C = A + B D E = C - D F G H = C + F + G
2019/20

Programme
Base & 

Rephasing

Current Year
Movements

Current Year
Total Budget

Forecast 
Spend

2019/20

Variation 2020/21
Capital 

Programme

2021/22
Capital 

Programme

Total Total 
Scheme 
Spend to 

Date
Including 
Current 
Year 

Forecast

Total 
Scheme 
Budget

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000
3,740 0 3,740 3,740 0 1,860 0 5,600 3,740 5,600
5,000 0 5,000 5,000 0 0 0 5,000 5,000 5,000

8,740 0 8,740 8,740 0 1,860 0 10,600 8,740 10,600

Financial Management Update for Rephasing variances - will feed into main body of Finance Update.  No more than 100 words.

No variance to the programme is currently forecast.

TOTAL

Capital Scheme

Manchester Airport
Investment Fund

P
age 50



Adult Care Children's Economy Neighbourhoods Resources Total
Rephasing to future years previously approved - 1,017 8,457 26-                                      - 9,448
P6 rephasing requested - - 6,061 1,149 - 7,210
Actual Spend to 30th September 2019 1,081 5,172 14,970 10,725 - 31,948
Forecast Further Spend 2,063 21,649 39,440 17,482 8,740 89,374
Capital Budget Reductions - - - 601 - 601
Approved Capital Budget 3,144 27,838 68,928 29,931 8,740 138,581

P
age 51



APPENDIX G

1 Treasury Management

1.1 Treasury Management activity aims to effectively manage the Council’s cash flow 
requirements through borrowing and investment. The service operates within CIPFA’s/ 
MHCLG’s Prudential Framework and the approved Treasury Management Strategy to 
ensure risk is appropriately managed when seeking to minimise the costs of borrowing 
and maximise returns on investment.

1.2 The first six months of the year have been dominated by political upheavals and 
continuing uncertainty around Brexit. Economic growth has fallen with generally down 
beat assessments of both the UK and world economic outlook. Inflation remains on 
target (around 2%) but with warnings about the potential for significant increases 
depending on the final Brexit outcome. Against this backdrop, interest rates for 
borrowing have been extremely volatile throughout the first half of the year.

On 9 October 2019 the Treasury announced an increase in the margin over gilt yields of 
100bps on top of the current margin of 80 bps which this authority has paid prior to this date 
for new borrowing from the Public Loans Works Board (PWLB).  Overnight a loan 
previously priced at 1.2% would now cost 2.2%. There was no prior warning that this would 
happen and it now means that every local authority has to fundamentally reassess how to 
finance their external borrowing needs. Whereas this authority has previously relied on the 
PWLB as its main source of funding, it now has to consider alternative cheaper sources of 
borrowing. At the current time, this is a developmental area as this event has also taken the 
financial services industry by surprise. We are expecting that various financial institutions 
will enter the market or make products available to local authorities. Members will be 
updated as this area evolves.

1.3 Table 1 below summarises the borrowing activity of the Council in the first half of the 
year showing the types of loan, the average interest rate and the average length of 
maturity of each class of loan. 

Table 1 Borrowing 

Balance New Borrowing Repayments Balance Average Average
Debt Type at 1/4/19 to 30/9/19 to 30/9/19 at 30/9/19 Rate Maturity

£M £M £M £M % Years
Fixed Rate Debt
PWLB Debt 88.809 - 2.169 86.640 2.49% 13.14
Market Debt 86.000 - - 86.000 4.33% 41.41
Short Term Debt - - - - - -
Total Fixed Rate Debt 174.809 - 2.169 172.640 3.41% 27.22

Variable Rate Debt
PWLB - - - -
Market Debt 34.000 - 0.000 34.000 4.64% 47.36
Total Variable Rate Debt 34.000 - - 34.000

TOTAL DEBT 208.809 - 2.169 206.640 3.65% 30.53

Page 52



1.4 No long term borrowing has been undertaken so far in 2019/20. The current year’s 
capital programme, including rephasing from previous years, has so far been funded 
by internal (from reserves and balances) borrowing. A similar policy, plus occasional 
short term borrowing has been used to support the capital programme in the previous 
6 years. This means there is potential for rephased external borrowing of £192m in 
2019/20 and future years as balances are used for their intended purpose or to bridge 
the overall budget gap.

Future borrowing for the second part of the year is estimated at £34m as reserves and 
balances continue to support the majority of our borrowing requirement. It is likely that 
any new borrowing in the remainder of the year will be spread over short and medium 
term loans. This is due to our current debt profile having long maturity dates and 
current market uncertainty after the PWLB announcement. 

1.5 Delaying our long term borrowing has led to savings of £596k compared to our revised 
estimate in the first part of the year. 

A projection of the net cost of interest on the Council’s borrowings and investments is 
shown in table 2.

Table 2 Interest Summary

  Revised Current Variation
 Interest Estimate Projection Under/(Over)
  £000 £000 £000
    
 External Borrowing (net of Contributions) 6,678 6,082 596
    
 Investment Income (338) (495) 157
    
 Other Interest Related Budgets 453 453                   -   
    
 TOTAL INTEREST 6,793 6,040 753

1.6 The Treasury Management Strategy details a number of Prudential Indicators which 
the Prudential Code requires the Council to manage and report on. The indictors are 
as follows:

 Maturity Structure of Fixed Interest Borrowing
 Operational and Authorised Limits

Page 53



1.7 Maturity

The maturity structure of fixed interest borrowing should enable the maturity of loans 
across a range of years so that the Council will not be exposed to a requirement for 
large amounts of repayment at a particular time. This needs balancing against the 
requirement for certainty of costs to secure budgets going forward and the desire to 
secure the best possible rates. The Prudential Code requires the Council to place 
upper and lower ranges on maturity.

Table 3 Period of Maturity

Upper Lower Actual
Period of Maturity Limit Limit to Date

Under 12 months 60% 0% 2.10%
Between 12 & 24 months 60% 0% 2.10%
Between 2 & 5 years 60% 0% 6.59%
Between 5 & 10 years 70% 0% 9.71%
Over 10 years 100% 25% 79.50%

1.8 Debt Boundaries & Limits

The Council’s Operational Boundary (the limit which borrowing should not normally 
exceed) in 2019/20 (adjusted for PFI projects and externally managed debt) is 
£532m. The Authorised Limit (a control on our maximum level of borrowing) is 
£622m. Current borrowing (adjusted for PFI and other debt related long term 
liabilities) is £307.4m – comfortably within the approved limits. We do not expect to 
exceed these limits in the latter half of the year. 

1.9 Investments 

The level of investments on 1st April 2019 was £76.6m and is £76.9m at 30/9/19. The 
level of investments the Council targets to maintain in the future will generally be 
between £30-40m. The balance has remained above our target due to slower capital 
spend and the maintenance of reserves and balances. The Council is on target to 
surpass its investment income target of £338k by around £157k due primarily to the 
increased balance invested.  The average interest rate earned on investments in the 
first part of the year was 0.85% compared to our benchmark of 0.59% (7 Day LIBID 
plus 2 basis points).

1.10 Investments represent surplus cash as a result of timing differences between receipt 
of funds and related expenditure which creates earmarked reserves and balances held 
for future need. The Council’s main investment priority continues to be the security of 
capital followed by liquidity and yield / return. The Treasury Management Team aims 
to achieve the optimum return commensurate with proper levels of security and 
liquidity. In the current economic climate, with continuing credit concerns it is 
considered appropriate to keep investments relatively short dated with no investments 
placed for more than a year.  Over half (58.4%) of our current portfolio is available on 
call (including Money Market Funds) with the remainder invested in notice accounts 
and fixed term deposits. All investments are made with counterparties with strong 

Page 54



credit ratings and adhere to the limits (duration and amount with each institution) 
specified in our Treasury Management Strategy.

1.11 The relative percentages of the investment portfolio held on 30th September 2019 are 
detailed in table 4 by maturity, investment type, institution and credit rating.

Table 4 Investment Portfolio

Maturing: Amount £m % Investments Types Amount £m %
Instant Call 44.9 58.4% Fixed Term Deposits 22.0 28.6%
Less than 1 Month 0.0 0.0% Notice Accounts 10.0 13.0%
1-3 Months 10.5 13.7% Call and Overnight 3.9 5.1%
3-6 Months 17.5 22.7% Money Market 41.0 53.3%
6 Months to 1 Year 4.0 5.2% Total 76.9 100%
Over 1 Year 0.0 0.0%
Total 76.9 100%

Maturity Type of Investment

Institutions: Amount £m % Institution Rating Amount £m %
UK Banks 25.9 33.7% A     -  British 2.0 2.6%
Building Societies 0.0 0.0% A+   -  British 23.9 31.1%
Other (Rest of the world) 10.0 13.0% AA-  - Worldwide 10.0 13.0%
Money Market 41.0 53.3% AAA - MMFs 41.0 53.3%
Total 76.9 100% Total 76.9 100%

RatingsInstitutions

Page 55



FINANCE SERVICES

Revenue Summary

Finance Update Dashboard P6 2019/20

Revenue Key Movements/Variances

Adult Care: £1.233m Overspend mitigated by contribution from Pooled Budget - financial pressures from the number and costs of care 
packages for service users. There is a further pressure from the provision of statutory Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards assessments. 
This pressure will be wholly met by an additional contribution from the Health & Social Care pooled budget.
Children’s Services - £6.707m Overspend with £3.607m being mitigated through the DSG Reserve
£3.100m is attributable to external residential placements. The remaining £3.607m relates to pressures on the Dedicated School Grant 
(DSG) within the High Needs block. This will put the DSG reserve into a deficit position and will result in a 3 year recovery plan to be 
submitted to the Department for Education.
Financial Control - £3.987m In-Year saving - this in-year saving relates to an expected refund from Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority and interest savings due to reduced borrowing requirement.
Neighbourhoods £0.250m Overspend- This mainly reflects pressures on the Strategic Housing budget re:homelessness costs not fully 
covered by Government subsidy. Corporate funding has been earmarked to offset the pressure if necessary.
Resources - £0.256m In-Year saving - This includes a pressure from the Legal Shared Service with Manchester City Council, mitigated by 
savings from staffing costs within the Directorate overall.  
Integrated Pooled Budget Contribution - £6.700m Overspend - see Health & Social Care Pooled Fund for further details.

Recommendations
Cabinet approves:
£6.700m additional contribution to the Health & Social Care pooled fund, noting £0.823m to be reduced off the 2020/21 contribution.
Budget Pressures requests of:
Economy £0.035m one off funding in 2019/20 relates to the Asset Rationalisation Initiative, to fund the maintenance and running costs
as a result of the delayed disposal of Council assets.
Economy £0.005m ongoing increasing to £0.018m 2020/21 relating to the application of a Market Factor Supplement within Estates and 
Asset Management Service to enable recruitment to posts at a competitive rate.
Neighbourhoods £0.016m one off funding in 2019/20 relating to the closure of Heybrook School for emergency repairs.
Resources: £0.035m one off funding in 2019/20, £0.041m in 2020/21 and £0.041m in 2021/22 to purchase the new case management 
system and employ a Project Manager to implement it.
Resources: (£0.067m) budget return in relation to Electoral Reform as government funding now available in 2019/20.
Capital Budget switch for:
Neighbourhoods Service: £0.089m of 2019/20 budget in the Replacement Parks/Street Machinery scheme to the Upgrade Play 
Equipment Scheme to support a programme of works which are required to bring play areas up to a good standard. 

Capital Summary
Approved rephasing: 
£6.061m Economy: £3.061m Town Centre Schemes due to various delays in schemes, £2.500m Heywood South/Junction 19 due to delays in the completion of the Spatial Framework,
£0.500m Northern Gateway Feasibility & Study as this scheme links in with Heywood South/Junction 19 scheme.

£1.149m Neighbourhoods Service: £0.480m for Asset Management Group as schemes are scheduled to commence in 2020/21, £0.450m New Cemetery Sites of rephasing is required for work being 
undertaken to replace the cremators at Rochdale Cemetery, £0.172m CCTV Upgrade as the scheme has been delayed to 2020/21, £0.041m Section 106 Environmental management to facilitate the 
completion of Bowlee pitch drainage once the season has come to a close, £0.006m Cashless System School Catering.

Health & Social Care Pooled Fund

The Health & Social Care pool funding gap as at the end of September is £11.4m, 
an improvement of £0.3m since the end of July. 

There is a £3m overspend being reported against the pool budget for 2019/20 
(£1.8m on Health related budgets and £1.2m on Adult Social Care) bringing the 
total pool pressure to £14.4m. 

The Integrated Commissioning Board continue to work on mitigating actions. The
Council is currently assuming a total liability of £6.700m relating to this pressure 
which is detailed in the main report, and the Clinical Commissioning Group liability 
is £7.700m.

Corporate Debt

As at the end of September 2019 the total 
outstanding sundry debt is £14.790m, an 
increase of £2.590m from July 2019.

Health and Social Care Pooled Budget 2019/20

2019/20 

Budget

2019/20 

Forecast
Variance

September Monitoring position £m's £m's £m's

Total Adult Pooled Services 260.1 262.7 (2.6)

Total Children's Pooled Services 90.7 91.1 (0.4)

Total Health and Social Care 

Pooled Budgets
350.8 353.8 3.0

Contribution from Partners

CCG (249.6) (249.6) 0.0

LA (89.8) (89.8) 0.0

Total Contributions (339.4) (339.4) 0.0

Revised Gap 11.4 14.4 3.0
Adult Care Children's Economy Neighbourhoods Resources Total

Rephasing to future years previously approved -                                     1,017                                 8,457                                 26-                                       -                                     9,448                                 

P6 rephasing requested -                                     -                                     6,061                                 1,149                                 -                                     7,210                                 

Actual Spend to 30th September 2019 1,081                                 5,172                                 14,970                               10,725                               -                                     31,948                               

Forecast Further Spend 2,063                                 21,649                               39,440                               17,482                               8,740                                 89,374                               

Capital Budget Reductions -                                     -                                     -                                     601                                     -                                     601                                     

Approved Capital Budget 3,144                                 27,838                               68,928                               29,931                               8,740                                 138,581                            

Directorate/ Detail

Budget 

Council

Virements/

Contingency Current Budget

Service and 

Corporate 

Uncontrollables

Current 

Controllable

Approved 

Net 

Budget

Forecast 

Outturn

In Year 

Saving/

(Overspend)

Previous 

Monitoring 

Report (July 

Cabinet)

Movement 

Since July 

Cabinet

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Adult Care 15,415 1,143 16,558 4,047 12,511 12,511 - - -

Children's 21,585 5,805 27,390 19,110 8,280 11,380 (3,100) (3,275) 175

Economy 15,993 (115) 15,878 755 15,123 15,258 (135) (100) (35)

Neighbourhoods 52,413 2,710 55,123 1,281 53,842 54,092 (250) (206) (44)

Public Health and Wellbeing 8,206 287 8,493 1,889 6,604 6,604 - - -

Resources 8,222 (308) 7,914 (3,692) 11,606 11,350 256 (27) 283

TOTAL GENERAL SERVICES SPENDING 121,834 9,522 131,356 23,390 107,966 111,195 (3,229) (3,608) 379

Integrated Pool Budget Contribution 87,159 2,615 89,774 - 89,774 96,474 (6,700) (4,500) (2,200)

TOTAL POOLED BUDGETS 87,159 2,615 89,774 - 89,774 96,474 (6,700) (4,500) (2,200)

Finance Control: Corporately Held Budgets 4,139 (14,758) (10,619) (20,623) 10,004 6,017 3,987 877 3,110

Finance Control: Transformation Fund 1,719 2,748 4,467 - 4,467 4,467 - - -

Finance Control: Budget Pressures 1,370 (727) 643 - 643 643 - - -

TOTAL FINANCE CONTROL SPENDING 7,228 (12,737) (5,509) (20,623) 15,114 11,127 3,987 877 3,110

NET EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS 216,221 (600) 215,621 2,767 212,854 218,796 (5,942) (7,231) 1,289

P
age 56



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 2nd December 2019
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Stuart Smith (Resources 
Directorate)

Public/Private Document Public

Collection Fund 2019/20

Executive Summary

1. To update Cabinet and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 
forecast Collection Fund outturn position for 2019/20 as at the end of 
September 2019.

The Collection Fund Position for 2019/20 is a forecast surplus of £1.383m, 
comprising:

 £0.597m surplus relating to Business Rates;
 £0.786m surplus relating to Council Tax.

The Council’s share of the forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund outturn surplus is 
£1.260m. 

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that Cabinet notes:
 the forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund outturn position, and
 that the Council is due to receive £1.470m from Greater Manchester 

Combined Authority in respect of  2018/19 Business Rates growth 
previously paid, and this will be held in the Business Rates Growth 
Reserve, as detailed in paragraph 4.2.5.

Reason for Recommendation

3 The Collection Fund forecast outturn report for 2019/20 is presented to 
Cabinet for noting as part of the budget monitoring process.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1     Introduction

4.1.1 The Collection Fund Account reflects the statutory requirement for the Council 

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



to maintain a separate fund in relation to the billing and collection of Business 
Rates and Council Tax. 

4.1.2 This report focuses on the forecast Collection Fund outturn position for 
2019/20 covering:
 The summary position, and the Council’s share of the Collection Fund 

position;
 The Business Rates income position compared to budget, an update 

relating to rateable value appeals, 2019/20 collection performance and 
current level of arrears;

 The Council Tax income position compared to budget, detail of the Local 
Council Tax Support Scheme, 2019/20 collection performance and current 
level of arrears.

4.2       Summary

4.2.1 The forecast Collection Fund Position for 2019/20 is a surplus of £1.383m, 
comprising:
 £0.597m surplus relating to Business Rates;
 £0.786m surplus relating to Council Tax.

4.2.2 Table 1 shows the forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund position, and the 
allocation of the forecast surplus between precepting authorities.

Table 1 – Forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund surplus 

4.2.3 The Council’s share of the forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund surplus is 
£1.260m.  

4.2.4 In 2019/20 the Council continues to be part of a pilot for the 100% retention of 
Business Rates, along with other Greater Manchester authorities. Under the 
pilot scheme, 100% of Business Rates income is retained locally, of which 
99% is retained by the local authority, and 1% retained by Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority (GMCA) in respect of GM Fire and Rescue Service.

4.2.5 The forecast 2019/20 benefit from the 100% Business Rates Retention 
scheme pilot has been calculated to be £5.229m, based on an agreed formula 

Page 58



within Greater Manchester. 50% of the benefit will be paid to GMCA, and the 
remaining 50% will be retained by the Council, and transferred to a reserve.

The Council is due to receive a refund £1.470m from GMCA relating to 
2018/19 growth previously paid. This will be transferred to the Business Rates 
Growth Reserve, which is being held until the implications of the Business 
Rates reset are known.

4.2.6 The Council continues to be part of a Business Rates pool, which for 2019/20 
includes the 10 Greater Manchester local authorities, Cheshire East Council 
and Cheshire West & Chester Council. Any sum gained, after applying the 
agreed allocation to levy authorities, will be retained by the pool for investment 
within Greater Manchester and other non-Greater Manchester Authorities 
involved in the pool.

4.3 Business Rates 

4.3.1 Net Income Raised

4.3.1.1 The forecast 2019/20 outturn position relating to Business Rates is a surplus 
of £0.597m. Table 2 provides detail of the forecast outturn position:

Table 2 – Forecast  2019/20 Business Rates income

Description Budget 2019/20 
Forecast

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit

(Surplus)/Deficit 
movement 

from previous 
update

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Gross income (84,370) (83,742) 628 628
Net Small Business Rate relief 6,936 7,350 414 150
Mandatory Charitable relief 4,051 4,100 49 - 
Discretionary relief 2,786 1,887 (899) (255)
Empties & Part Occupied relief 3,700 2,950 (750) (250)
Net Income (66,897) (67,455) (558) 273
Less:     
Charge re bad debt provision 1,000 800 (200) (200)
Allowance for cost of collection 276 276 - - 
Provision for rateable value 
revaluations 3,802 3,802 - - 
Renewable energy schemes 520 613 93 93
Net yield (61,299) (61,964) (665) 166
2018/19 payments to 
preceptors/billing authority 61,299 61,299 - - 
In year surplus - (665) (665) 166
(Surplus)/deficit brought 
forward from 2018/19 (4,113) (4,045) 68 - 
Payments to preceptors/billing 
authority re 2018/19 surplus 
per the 2019/20 Budget 
process 4,113 4,113 - - 
Forecast surplus as at 
30/09/2019 - (597) (597) 166

Page 59



4.3.1.2 The main areas of overall variance to the budget are:      

Explanation of variance
Variation to 

budget, £'000
Forecast reduced Empty Property and Discretionary Relief given, 
partially offset by forecast reduced Business Rate gross income 
and increased Small Business Rates and Mandatory Charitable 
reliefs. The Gross income forecast has reduced to reflect 2 RV 
revaluations by the Valuation Office Agency which have been 
valued at less than had been estimated as part of the Budget 
Setting process.

(465)

Forecast reduced charge relating to the bad debt provision. (200)

Actual surplus brought forward from 2018/19 is £68k lower than 
had been forecast as part of the 2019/20 Budget process. 68

2019/20 forecast surplus (597)

4.3.2    Valuation Office Agency (VOA) appeals 

4.3.2.1 Since 1st April 2013 local authorities have been responsible for providing for 
potential losses of income for successful appeals against revaluations which 
have taken place in 2005, 2010 and 2017. There are a number of appeals that 
require review by the VOA, mostly dating back to the 2010 rateable value (RV) 
list.

4.3.2.2 The number of property revaluation appeals outstanding at the end of 
September 2019, relating to Rochdale’s 2005 and 2010 valuation lists, was 86 
cases, with an RV of £15.2m (equating to approximately £7.5m in annual 
Business Rates income). New appeals against the 2010 RV list ceased at the 
end of September 2017.

4.3.2.3 The table below provides detail of the number of appeals outstanding relating 
to the 2005/2010 RV lists, during 2019/20:

 
Outstanding 

appeals 2005/ 2010 
RV list  

Number of 
appeals 

outstanding

Rateable value 
(RV)

£’000

March 2019 114 21,758

July 2019 94 16,518

September 2019 86 15,231

Page 60



4.3.2.4  Business Rates Appeals relating to the 2017 RV list are subject to a three-
stage appeals process. The new appeals system currently has had little 
activity. An estimated amount has been charged to the Collection Fund to 
offset future reductions in RV that are made by the VOA.

4.3.2.5 A recent Court ruling will mean that Business Rates on cash machines 
outside shops will no longer be chargeable, and refunds will be made. A 
provision has been made for this issue.        

    
4.3.2.6 The level of provision for outstanding appeals and other RV reductions 

relating to 2005, 2010 and 2017 RV lists is £10.9m.

4.3.2.7 The forecast 2019/20 charge to the Collection Fund for RV revaluations is 
£3.802m which reflects the need to offset the potential impact of appeals and 
other rateable value changes relating to the 2017 RV list, and any shortfall in 
provision relating to the 2005 and 2010 lists.

4.3.3    Business rates 2019/20 collection performance 

4.3.3.1 The year to date collection rate for Business Rates income billed in 2019/20 is 
53.60%, which is 0.5% higher than the equivalent 2018/19 performance. 
Collection performance is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that debt is 
recovered as efficiently and effectively as possible, and so that any trends may 
be highlighted and action taken as necessary. 

4.3.3.2 Table 3 shows the aged debt analysis of Business Rates arrears, excluding 
legal costs, as at the end of March 2019 and end of September 2019. Pre 
2019/20 arrears were £1.201m as at the end of September 2019, which is a 
net increase of £0.005m from the position at end of March 2019 due to prior 
year adjustments from the VOA.

Table 3 – Business Rates arrears (excluding legal costs) 

Year
Arrears as at 
end March 

2019

Arrears as at 
end 

September 
2019

Decrease/ 
(increase) 

in debt

 £'000 £'000 £'000
Pre 2019/20 debt    
2018/19 453 556 (103)
2017/18 393 296 97
2016/17 245 212 33
2015/16 79 122 (43)
2014/15 16 13 3
2013/14 8 1 7
2012/13 1 0 1
Prior to 2012/13 1 1 - 
Total arrears 1,196 1,201 (5)

Page 61



4.3.3.3 The forecast 2019/20 charge to the Collection Fund for bad and doubtful 
debts is £0.800m. In year debt collection is currently expected to reach the 
collection rate achieved in 2018/19 of 98.7%, resulting in a low level of debt to 
provide a provision for. Pre 2018/19 debt is at a low level.

4.4        Council Tax 

4.4.1     Net Income Raised

4.4.1.1 The forecast 2019/20 outturn position relating to Council Tax is a surplus of 
£0.786m. Table 4 provides details of the forecast outturn position for Council 
Tax.

            Table 4 – 2019/20 Council Tax Income

Description Budget 2019/20 
Forecast

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

movement 
from 

previous 
report

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
INCOME     
Income from Council Tax (137,640) (136,850) 790 50
Income from premium on Empty 
Properties (278) (320) (42) - 
Council Tax discounts 13,881 13,840 (41) 5
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
(LCTSS) 18,760 18,150 (610) (150)
Prior year adjustments 165 200 35 - 
Total income (105,112) (104,980) 132 (95)
EXPENDITURE     

Charge re bad debt provision 2,628 1,895 (733) - 
Total expenditure 2,628 1,895 (733) - 
Net income to be raised for 
precept/ billing authority after 
LCTSS awarded (102,484) (103,085) (601) (95)

2018/19 payments to Preceptors 102,484 102,484 - - 
In year surplus - (601) (601) (95)
(Surplus)/deficit brought forward 
from 2018/19 (2,589) (2,774) (185) - 
Payments to preceptors re 2018/19 
surplus as per the 2019/20 Budget 
process 2,589 2,589 - - 

Forecast surplus as at - (786) (786) (95)

Page 62



4.4.1.2 The main areas of overall variance from the budget are:

Explanation of variance
Variation to 

budget, £'000

Forecast reduced Council Tax gross income and reduced discount, 
offset by increased income from Empty Property and prior year 
adjustments.

742

Forecast reduced charge relating to the bad debt provision. (733)

Forecast reduced level of Local Council Tax Support discount 
given. (610)

Actual surplus brought forward from 2018/19 is £185k higher than 
had been forecast as part of the 2019/20 Budget process. (185)

2019/20 forecast surplus (786)

4.4.2     Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTSS)

4.4.2.1 The award of Local Council Tax Support to a Council Tax payer is deducted 
from Council Tax bills at the start of the financial year as a discount. This 
remains the same unless there is a change of circumstances within the 
household. Local Council Tax Support relief to be given for 2019/20 is forecast 
to be £18.150m which is £0.610m (3.25%) less than budget. 

    Table 5 - LCTSS - Comparison of estimate to forecast outturn as at 
September 2019

 

Estimated 
number 

of 
claimants

Number of 
claimants 
per actual 

data at 
end 

September 
2019

Increase/ 
(reduction) in 

claimant 
numbers

% 
reduction 

in 
claimants

Working age total 14,093 14,347 254 1.80%
Pension credit age total 8,143 7,662 (481) (5.91%)
Total 22,236 22,009 (227) (1.02%)

 

Estimate  2019/20 
forecast

(Surplus)/deficit 
Variation

% 
reduction 

in 
discount 

given
 £'000 £'000 £'000 %
Working age total 10,820 10,771 (49) (0.45%)
Pension credit age total 7,940 7,379 (561) (7.07%)
Total 18,760 18,150 (610) (3.25%)

Page 63



4.4.2.2 Whilst the current number of claimants has reduced by 1.02% compared to 
budget, the reduction in discount given is 3.25%, meaning that the average 
level of support per claimant is lower than that anticipated when the 2019/20 
scheme was agreed.

4.4.3     Council Tax 2019/20 collection performance

4.4.3.1 The year to date collection rate for Council Tax income billed in 2019/20 is 
54.20%, which is 0.2% lower than the 2018/19 equivalent. Collection 
performance is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that debt is recovered 
as efficiently and effectively as possible, and so that any trends may be 
highlighted and action taken as necessary. 

4.4.3.2 Table 6 shows the age debt analysis of pre 2019/20 Council Tax debt, 
excluding legal costs, as at the end of March 2019 and the end of September 
2019. Pre 2019/20 arrears as at the end of September 2019 were £11.330m, 
which is a net decrease of £2.431m from the end of March 2019 position.

Table 6 – Council Tax arrears, excluding legal costs

Year

Arrears as 
at end 

March 2019

Arrears as at 
end 

September 
2019

Decrease in 
debt

 £'000 £'000 £'000
Pre 2019/20 debt    
2018/19 5,179 3,889 1,290
2017/18 2,951 2,566 385
2016/17 2,151 1,870 281
2015/16 1,422 1,223 199
2014/15 968 829 139
2013/14 683 600 83
2012/13 149 131 18
Prior to 2012/13 258 222 36
Total arrears 13,761 11,330 2,431

4.4.3.3 The forecast 2019/20 charge to revenue for bad and doubtful debts is 
£1.895m, which is £0.733m below the budget. This is due to the continuing 
improvement in the overall collection of debt, and reduced levels of debt write 
off, which has led to the level of provision required being reduced.

4.4.4    Council Tax Premium Waivers

4.4.4.1 Residential properties that have been empty for more than two years are, with 
specific exemptions, charged a Council Tax premium of a further 100% of the 
usual charge.  To support the local housing market, the Head of Revenues & 
Benefits, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance, has delegated 
authority to waive part or all of the premium charge in exceptional 
circumstances. In 2019/20 so far, £13,124 of Council Tax Premium income 
has been waived. 

Page 64



4.5       Alternatives considered

Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Authority’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. Effective financial management is 
critical to ensuring that financial resources are received in line with the budget, 
which enables them to be targeted towards the Council’s priorities.

Costs and Budget Summary

5 Financial Implications

5.1    The main body of the report provides a detailed analysis of the forecast 
2019/20 Collection Fund outturn position.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1    Unresolved appeals against the revaluation assessments for 2005, 2010 and 
2017 cause uncertainty and financial risk for the Business Rates income 
retained by the Council. The situation is monitored on a monthly basis to 
ensure that any changes in the trend for successful appeals are recognised 
due to the future impact on Business Rates income and the impact for the 
provision for any backdated elements. 

6.2 The VOA alters rating assessments if new information comes to light indicating 
that the valuation is inaccurate. These could relate to a demolition, new 
property builds or other physical changes to a property. The number of 
alterations, financial impact and timing of the revaluations are not within the 
control of the Council.

6.3 The future level of collection of both Business Rates and Council Tax debt is a 
potential financial risk. Collection performance is being monitored on a 
monthly basis to ensure that debt is recovered as efficiently and effectively as 
possible, and so that any trends may be highlighted and action taken as 
necessary.

6.4 There is an on-going risk that issues decided nationally by the VOA could 
potentially impact on Rochdale BC’s Business Rates income.

Consultation

7.   The Leadership Team, the Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance, and 
Shadow Portfolio Holder for Finance have been informed of the forecast 
2019/20 Collection Fund forecast position and its implications for future years. 
The report will be presented to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 26th November 2019.

Page 65



Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. For further information about this 
report or access to any 
background papers contact Stuart 
Smith

No1 Riverside Floor 2

For Further Information Contact: Stuart Smith (Resources Directorate), 
Tel: 01706 924196, 
stuart.smith@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 66



FINANCE SERVICES

P6, 2019/20 Collection Fund Update Summary
Table 1 - Forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund Outturn Summary

Table 2 - Rateable Value detail - September 2019    Chart 1 - Business Rates Relief Chart 2 -  Business Rates income collection Chart 3 - Business Rates arrears 

Chart 4 - Council Tax properties          Chart 5 - Council Tax Relief Chart 6 - Council Tax income collection
Chart 7 - Council Tax arrears

The forecast Collection Fund outturn for 2019/20 is a surplus of £1.383m, comprising:
£0.597m surplus relating to Business Rates;
£0.786m surplus relating to Council Tax.

The areas of variance to the budget are:
Business Rates :

(£465k) Forecast reduced Empty Property and Discretionary Relief given, partially offset by forecast
reduced Business Rate gross income and increased Small Business Rates and Mandatory Charitable reliefs.

(£200k) Forecast reduced charge relating to bad debt provision
£68k Actual 2018/19 surplus lower than estimated as part of 2019/20 Estimates process

Council Tax:
(£185k) Actual 2018/19 surplus higher than estimated as part of 2019/20 Estimates process
(£733k) Reduced charge relating to Bad Debt Provision
£132k Forecast income lower than budget, mainly due to reduced income from Council Tax partially

offset by lower levels of Local Council Tax Support given.

The Council’s share of the forecast 2019/20 Collection Fund surplus is £1.260m.

The Council is due to receive £1.470m from Greater Manchester Combined Authority in respect of 2018/19 Business
Rates growth previously paid, and this will be held in the Business Rates Growth Reserve

Total Arrears outstanding as at September 2019 are £1,202k.

A large proportion of the unsummonsed balance relates to new debt as a result of
Valuation Office Agency decisions which have affected prior years. On confirmation
of these decisions, Revenue & Benefits initiate the debt collection process.

Although £1.034k of debt has been collected during 2019/20, this has been offset by
refunds and other adjustments.

Total debt outstanding as at the end of March 2018 was £13,761k. Arrears
at September 2019 are £11,330k.

Forecast Gross Business Rates income £83.742m.

Total Business Rates Relief to be given £16.287m.

Potential risk areas

Business Rates and Council Tax debt collection not meeting target for collection.
Collection performance is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that debt is recovered as efficiently
and effectively as possible, and so that action taken as necessary.

Unresolved appeals against the revaluation assessments for 2005, 2010 and 2017 cause uncertainty
and financial risk for the Business Rates income retained by the Council. There are currently 86 appeals
with a rateable value of £15.2m outstanding relating to the 2005 and 2010 RV lists. There is little
information available relating to the 2017 list.

The VOA alters rating assessments if new information comes to light indicating that the valuation is
inaccurate. The number of alterations, financial impact and timing of revaluations are not within the
control of the Council.

Business Rate appeals can be raised against the Rateable Valuation of a
hereditament. If the appeal is successful this may lead to adjustments being made in
prior years.

Other changes made by the Valuation Office Agency to the Rateable Value will also
impact on the level of income raised and debt collectable.

Forecast Gross Council Tax income is approximately £137m.
Forecast Council Tax relief to be given is approximately £32m.

Approximately 35,000 properties receive Single Person's Discount.
There are currently approximately 22,000 claiming Local Council Tax Support.

Total
% £'000 % £'000 £'000

Forecast Collection Fund surplus at 31/03/20 (597) (786) (1,383)

Preceptors' Share of 2019/20 forecast outturn

Rochdale BC 99 (591) 85.18 (669) (1,260)

GMCA Mayoral Police & Crime Commissioner - - 10.68 (84) (84)

GMCA Mayoral General  (including Fire Services) 1 (6) 4.14 (33) (39)

Total forecast surplus 100 (597) 100 (786) (1,383)

Business Rates Council Tax

P
age 67



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 26th November 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Rosemary Barker
Public/Private Document Public

Organisational Development Plan 2019

Executive Summary

1. The purpose of this report is to update Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee with the up to date plan for Corporate Organisational 
Development (OD) to support the organisation to achieve its aims and 
objectives. Key strands for the plan include supporting Culture change; 
Leadership Development; Staff engagement; Health and Wellbeing and 
Learning and Development. The OD ‘plan on a page’ is attached as 
Appendix 1 

Recommendation

2. That Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee endorse the current plan 
and provide scrutiny of the plan for the team to modify accordingly 

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Organisational Development Plan is a key enabler for the Corporate 
and Directorate plans 

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2 

4.3

Through the OD plan the Corporate OD team seek to bring together the 
key themes of OD activity into a high level summary which give clear 
visual image of the key objectives, outcomes and programmes and 
activities for each of the main themes of the programme 

Each of the themes is underpinned by a more detailed 
action/implementation plan. (The Workforce Wellbeing one is subject to a 
separate report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee)

 Supporting documents attached to the plan include 

 Leadership Academy guidance

Page 68

Agenda Item 9



 Staff engagement plan   

4.4  Key achievements over the last year included

 Introduction of new values and behaviours across the Council and the 
CCG which are forming the basis of our review of the Personal 
Development Review process (and one to ones) as well as our 
approach to Recruitment and Selection

 Cultural diagnostic work undertaken in the Integrated Commissioning 
Directorate (ICD) enabling action planning to build on integration to 
date

 A coaching programme in place 
 Bespoke ICD Team Development Activities delivered to: ICD Service 

briefing – Open Space Event ,All ages Commissioning (20.09.18 & ICD 
SMT ,Adult Commissioning Team, Programme Delivery Unit ,resulting 
in enhanced team effectiveness as measured by diagnostic interviews

 Programme for Joint Leadership Network which has included 
development and delivery of “changing the conversation” workshops & 
21st Century Public Servant facilitated by University of Birmingham 
research team members and talent conversations. 

 Increased focus on mediation through trained mediators to support 
resolution of potential disputes at an early stage.    

 Team development to support the integration of new teams and the 
effectiveness of existing teams across the organisation: These have 
included sessions across the organisations

 Leadership Academy Cohort 1 successfully delivered and positively 
evaluated by both delegates and their line managers. All cohort 1 
members achieve qualification at ILM Level 5. Cohort 1 to design and 
deliver our first Rochdale Leadership Conference in 2020,

 Cohort 2 have presented their projects / programme learning in 
September & October 2019 to Leadership Network 

 Cohort 3 recruitment commences September 2019
 Aspiring Leaders programme launched
 Staff Engagement Events delivered and positively evaluated – March 

2019
 Full staff survey completed and resulting action plan communicated
 Directorate conferences facilitated and successfully delivered 

4.5 Priorities for the coming year include 

 Development of a new One to One /Personal Development Review 
Process incorporating a new approach to talent management and 
developing this across the organisation

 Developing and launching a New Managers Programme to 
complement the Leadership Academy and Aspiring Leaders 
Programme

Page 69



 Further developing the Leadership Academy into a broader Locality 
offer (The Academy has been identified as best practice by Greater 
Manchester colleagues)

 Further development of the Aspiring Leaders Programme  
 Supporting the action plan from the Engagement Survey 2019
 Launching a new approach to staff induction 
   

      

Costs and Budget Summary

The Corporate OD team is a small team of three officers, one of who is funded by 
Transformation Funding. The plan is delivered largely in house with occasional 
external input on the basis of a business case.    

Risk and Policy Implications

The risk of underinvestment in OD and failing to prioritise this area of work is that 
we have leadership, workforce and a culture that fails to support the changes 
needed to make the organisation fit for the future.

For Further Information Contact: Rosemary Barker, , 
rosemary.barker@rochdale.gov.uk

Martin Plant
Martin.plant@rochdale .gov.uk

Page 70

mailto:Martin.plant@rochdale


Version 1: 09.08.18 Martin Plant

OD Plan on a page: 2019/20

THEMES OBJECTIVES OUTCOMES PROGRAMMES / ACTIVITIES
Culture Change
Supporting the 
transformation agenda 
and enabling the 
workforce to meet the 
challenges presented by 
PSR 

To support the Workforce Transformation 
project via the use of diagnostics and 
interventions

To support teams across the organisation in 
enhancing their effectiveness via the co-
production of interventions directed towards 
their development
Implementation of  an updated PDR process, 
talent conversation tool and new values and 
behaviours framework

ICD & LCO are enabled to deliver 
the objectives of the Health & Social 
Care Transformation agenda

Supported teams are able to 
articulate and demonstrate 
improvements

Talent conversations and the values 
and behaviours framework are 
future focussed and support 
delivery of the transformation 
agenda, PSR and the corporate plan

 Supporting LWTG Work streams
 Board/ Team Development 

 ICD / LCO/ Partners
 Bespoke Team Development 
 Bespoke Team development 

(new and existing teams)
 Focused activities relating to 

PSR & Community consultation
 Implementation across the 

organisation of a revised PDR 
process incorporating the new 
values and behaviours 
framework

Leadership Development
Inc. Succession planning 
and talent management

To grow the capacity and capability of 
Leaders across the whole organisation to 
support  PSR, Place based delivery of Services 
and the transformation agenda 

A more able and qualified 
Leadership group is created. The 
impact of Leadership development 
is tracked via staff surveys etc.

 LT & WLT development
 Rochdale Leadership Academy
 New Managers Programme
 Aspiring Leaders  programme

Staff Engagement Colleagues are able to articulate organisation 
objectives and are fully engaged in using their 
skills to support the transformation and 
improvement to service delivery

Outcomes are tracked via the 
employee survey and citizen 
satisfaction. Citizens are engaged in 
service design and delivery 

 “Your place in Rochdale” 
briefings & follow up sessions

 Development and analysis of 
Staff Survey

Health, Safety & 
Wellbeing

To promote a safe and healthy workforce to 
support job satisfaction, productivity and 
service delivery

A wellbeing strategy is developed 
and implemented and 
improvements are tracked via staff 
survey, sickness reporting and 
incident recording and reporting

 Develop and Implement 
Wellbeing strategy

Learning & Development To support the development of colleagues via 
the provision of high quality and up to date e-
learning materials and face to face 
programmes

e-learning programmes are 
continually developed and 
improved
Relevant face to face provision is 
designed, developed and delivered 

 Me-Learning Platform Content 
Development

 Stand-alone menu based 
programme: Health & Well-
being; Equalities.

P
age 71



Version 1: 09.08.18 Martin Plant

OD Plan on a page: 2019/20

Achievements:

 Cultural diagnostic undertaken in ICD (July 2019) enabling action planning to build on integration to date
 Coaching support provided to ICD SMT members
 Bespoke ICD Team Development Activities delivered to: 

ICD Service briefing – Open Space Event (01.11.18), All ages Commissioning (20.09.18 & 23.11.18), ICD SMT (02.07.19), Adult Commissioning Team 
(11.09.18, 15.01.19, 03.05.19 & 16.07.19), Programme Delivery Unit (20.12.18 & 20.08.19), joint PDU/All Ages event (14.11.19) 
resulting in enhanced team effectiveness as measured by diagnostic interviews

 Development and delivery of “changing the conversation” workshops for organisation leaders (14.08.19 & 05.11.19) & 21st Century Public Servant - 
University of Birmingham research team members (20.11.18)

 Team development to support the integration of new teams and the effectiveness of existing teams across the organisation:

Public Protection Managers (21.09.18), Youth Service – Children’s Services (02.10.18), Licensing Team – Public Protection (24.10.18), Environmental 
Health Team – Public Protection (26.10.18), Public Protection Service – neighbourhoods (10.10.18 & 16.11.18), Legal Services SMT – Resources 
(18.01.19), Trading  Standards – Neighbourhoods (25.10.18 & 10.05.19), Governance & Business Support  - Adult Care: Coaching Skills (16.05.19), 
Personal Budgets Team – Adult Care (31.07.19), Client Financial Affairs  - Adult Care (13.08.19 & 26.09.19)

 Leadership Academy Cohort 1 successfully delivered and positively evaluated by both delegates and their line managers. All cohort 1 members 
achieve qualification at ILM Level 5. Cohort 1 to design and deliver our first Rochdale Leadership Conference in February 2020,

 Cohort 2 have presented their projects / programme learning in September & October 2019 to Wider Leadership Team Members (Evaluation to 
follow)

 Cohort 3 recruitment commenced September 2019
 Staff Engagement Events delivered and positively evaluated – March 2019

P
age 72



Version 1: 09.08.18 Martin Plant

OD Plan on a page: 2019/20

THEMES PROGRAMMES / ACTIVITIES Due / Review Date
 Culture Change
 Supporting the 

transformation 
agenda and enabling 
the workforce to meet 
the challenges 
presented by PSR 

 Supporting LWTG Work streams
 Board/ Team Development 
 ICD / LCO/ Partners
 Bespoke Team Development 
 Bespoke Team development 

(new and existing teams)
 Focused activities relating to 

PSR & Community consultation
 Implementation across the 

organisation of a revised PDR 
process incorporating the new 
values and behaviours 
framework

 Ongoing / 31.03.20
 Ongoing / 31.03.20
 Ongoing / 31.03.20
 Ongoing / 31.03.20
 Ongoing / 31.03.20

 Ongoing / 31.03.20

 September 2020

 Leadership 
Development

 Inc. Succession 
planning and talent 
management

 LT & WLT development
 Rochdale Leadership Academy
 New Managers Programme
 Aspiring Leaders  programme

 Ongoing / 31.03.20
 January 2020
 March 2020
 July 2019

 Staff Engagement  “Your place in Rochdale” 
briefings & follow up sessions

 Development and analysis of 
Staff Survey

 March 2020

 September – December 2019

 Health, Safety & 
Wellbeing

 Develop and Implement 
Wellbeing strategy

 September 2019

 Learning & 
Development

 Me-Learning Platform Content 
Development

 Stand-alone menu based 
programme: Health & Well-
being; Equalities.

 Ongoing / 31.03.20

 Ongoing / 31.03.20

P
age 73



Engagement action plan

What? Who? Why? Due /Review

Develop a platform for residents (internet) 
and staff (intranet) to submit 
compliments/thanks to staff – a 
congratulatory email will automatically be 
sent to the recipient with details of the 
compliment

 ICT/ Communications/ set up, monitor 
and (if necessary) send to the relevant 
member of staff

 Staff who have received a compliment 
mentioned in newsletters / on the 
engagement page of the intranet 

People feel more engaged when they feel they 
have a purpose, their work is meaningful and 
has made a difference.

Survey results have shown employees would 
like RBC to share good news more effectively

31.03.20

Directorate / service conferences with 
Q&A sessions to share news about the 
directorate where not already in place

Directors and senior staff to organise and 
present / OD to support

Communication within directorates is 
important - staff feel that they have a voice. 
Staff are kept updated.

31.03.20

Ideas network:  ideas are submitted and a 
business case is developed and pitched to 
Leadership Team in a ‘Dragon’s Den’ type 
format. (Adult care have already 
developed a template)

Corporate or Directorate level activity Gives staff a platform to engage with senior 
leaders regarding ideas they may have. 

31.03.20

Recognition pin-badges for staff who have 
demonstrated the values – staff members 
can be nominated as having demonstrated 
one of the new values and would be 
awarded a badge for their lanyard (i.e. 
“proud” badge / “pioneering” badge / 
“passionate” badge) 
- Create case studies showing how 

employees are 
meeting/demonstrating the values

Senior leadership approval/ staff and 
system  in place to receive nominations 
and decide who is awarded a badge

Encourages staff to engage with the new 
values and rewards & recognises positive 
behaviour

31.03.20

P
age 74



Recognition for long service and good 
absence record. Certificates are given for 
good attendance and also at various 
milestones such as 10yrs and 20yrs service 

Senior leaders/ service heads / HR The recent staff engagement survey showed 
that some members of staff would like to be 
recognised for their long service to the Council 
as well as being rewarded for having a good 
absence record

31.03.20

Develop a mobile app or extranet site for 
both remote and non-remote workers to 
access, and keep abreast of updates and 
engagement initiatives. 
Engage with remote staff by making sure 
that anything that is offered to Number 
One Riverside staff is also available at 
Green Lane and other council building. 
Such events/initiatives to be advertised on 
app/extranet 

ICT / OD / all event organisers/ remote 
staff team leaders

Remote workers can easily feel disengaged, it 
is important that we offer the same events to 
all staff where possible or make provisions for 
staff to have time to attend training events. 
Creating a mobile app would be easier for 
those who do not have access to a computer 
and so rarely see the intranet.

31.03.20

P
age 75



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 1

   Guidance Document 

2019

Page 76



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 2

Contents
Rochdale Leadership Academy Overview   3

Leadership Development Model   6

Stage One: Intention – Awareness Raising   7

Stage Two: Preparation – Identifying Development Priorities   8

Stage Three:  Implementation – Resourcing the Development Plan   10

Stage Four: Maintenance –Coaching and Mentoring   13

Stage Five:  Review   14

Appendix One: Rochdale Borough Values & Priorities

Appendix Two: GM “Expectations” of Leaders

Appendix Three: Academy Development Planning Document

Appendix Four: Rochdale Leadership Academy Workshop Programme 

 

Page 77



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 3

Rochdale Leadership Academy Overview

The Academy Model was successfully piloted in 2017 with a 2nd Cohort recruited in 2018. 

Feedback from Cohort 2 delegates:

“The Rochdale Leadership Academy has been incredibly useful for learning and development not only 
on a personal level but putting the learning into practice means that my team is more resilient. The 
content covers major areas of development and is delivered in a professional and engaging way that 
is easy to understand in small chunks. The benefits to the wider Council machine will be massive as 
more managers are developed on this pathway. I would highly recommend.”

Chris Woods: Team Leader - Highways

“I’d thoroughly recommend any colleagues looking to develop and strengthen their skills to access 
the Leadership Academy.  The programme is structured and delivered in a way I found really 
beneficial drawing out my key areas for development, aligning my strengths and then exploring ways 
of pulling this all together to implement in my daily work.  I have found the Academy challenging, 
informative and stimulating and the impact this had on my approach to work has been noted by 
colleagues and my line manager too.”

Ryan Staniland : Quality & Monitoring – Adult Care

“The Rochdale Leadership Academy has been provided me with a hugely valuable opportunity to 
build up my knowledge and experience of working at a more senior level. The training and 
development provided has allowed me to develop my own skills and knowledge around management 
and leadership whilst also encouraging me to reflect and challenge my own practice. The groups 
have been supportive and together we have grown and become increasingly prepared for the roles 
that lie ahead of us. The fact that the programme is held in such high regard by the Executive 
Leadership Team makes you feel invested in, trusted and encouraged to develop as a leader within 
the organisation that is RBC. Thank you for the opportunity”

Emma Metcalfe-Dunham: Head of the Real Trust – Children’s Services

“I would recommend the Rochdale Leadership Academy because it has allowed me to network with 
colleagues from other internal services. Collectively in working groups, we have been able to reflect 
on our own managerial styles and develop new skills in a friendly supportive environment..”

Russell Smith: Operations Manager – Highways

Page 78



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 4

Some important characteristics of the Academy model:

 This is Rochdale’s internal academy. It is not linked to any other GM programmes or the NHS 
NW Leadership Academy

 It is open to all employees of the organisation who are tasked with leading and managing 
people as part of their role (it is not currently open to aspiring leaders).

 Nominees for the Academy will be recommended via Directorate Management Teams. In 
2019 there will be a maximum of 30 places on offer allocated as follows:

 DASS / Public Health Up to      7 places
 Commissioning / CCG   3
 Children’s Services        7
 Economy                              4
 Neighbourhoods                5
 Resources                              4

Any unused places will be re-advertised to other Directorates

 The Academy has, at its core, the Rochdale Corporate Plan, Values and Priorities.

 It is aimed at high performers across all grades and roles, with potential to progress to more 
senior positions.

 The development process is continuous and engagement with the academy doesn’t have an 
end point while the delegate remains in the organisation’s employment. There will be 
ongoing opportunities to learn and develop as members of the Rochdale leadership learning 
community.

 The Academy promotes behavioural change and skills enhancement with the ultimate 
objective of developing teams and enhancing the quality of the service user / customer 
experience.

 The Academy is overseen by a Board approved by the Leadership Network:
o Gail Hopper: Director of Children’s Services
o John Searle: Director of Economy
o David Wilcock: Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)
o Rosemary Barker: Head of Workforce & Organisational Development
o Caroline Wolfenden: Head of Corporate, Policy & Performance & Academy Delegate
o Martin Plant: Transformation Lead – Workforce Strategy

Page 79



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 5

The offer

 Each delegate will be empowered to design their own “development programme” with the 
support of their line manager based on diagnostic data which in turn will be used to 
formulate development and learning objectives.

 Diagnostic Tools:
o Delegates will have access to the Quintax personality assessment questionnaire; The 

Hay McBer Leadership Styles Inventory; the Academy Planning overview document.
o The Leadership Styles Inventory provides for feedback from employees who report 

to the delegate.

 Delegates and their Line Managers will be briefed by an HR colleague prior to engaging with 
the Academy. This briefing will provide further detail relating to expectations and core 
programme elements.

 Delegates will have access to a suite of classroom based modules and learning development 
groups. In addition to support from their line manager delegates may access support from a 
coach, either internally or external to the organisation. 

Expectations of delegates

 Delegates will be responsible for designing their own tailored learning supported by their 
line manager and OD colleagues. There is no minimum or maximum expectation regards 
time devoted to development activity but delegates are accountable for their own 
development and will be asked to articulate their progress through a project presentation 
which will form part of the evaluative process. The project should have a focus on service 
improvement and be aligned to strategic priorities. 

 The project should provide delegates with learning via “real work” as part of their agreed 
work programme and should provide an element of stretch in relation to their current skills 
and capabilities.

 Delegates who do not hold a current management qualification will be encouraged to 
undertake an ILM leadership and management qualification (Level 5) via the levy fund at the 
end of Year 1.

Expectations of delegate line managers

 The delegate line manager will be “active” in the process providing coaching and support 
(time) to access relevant development opportunities and in the provision of information to 
enable evaluation of delegate progress.

 There is an expectation that delegate line managers attend the coaching skills training 
element of the delegate programme and provide regular coaching support

Page 80



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 6

Leadership Development Model

Rochdale Borough’s leaders and managers play a key role in delivering the Corporate Plan. The 
Rochdale Borough Leadership Academy provides resources and development activities to colleagues 
to enable them to improve their leadership skills and capabilities.  

The Academy has at its core the Rochdale Borough Values and Priorities (Appendix One) and takes 
account of the Greater Manchester “Expectations” of Leaders (Appendix Two).

This guide outlines the resources and support available to academy delegates at each stage of the 
process and signposts participants to further information.

The approach is not programme based nor is it a prescriptive “one-size-fits-all” provision.  Instead 
we are providing a range of options and interventions to support development and promote 
focussed discussion between participants and their line managers. Delegates are responsible for 
their own learning and will create their own programme of development. Line Managers are 
responsible for supporting delegate development. 

The academy model of leadership development is based on the five phase model developed by 
Bernal.

The five phase leadership development model

Adapted from Bernal, E. (2009) Designing Transformational Leadership Development Programmes. 
Business Leadership Review VI: IV pp 1-17

Intention

Preparation

ImplementationMaintenance

Review

Page 81



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 7

Stage One: Intention – Awareness Raising

The premise is that the Academy delegate 
works in partnership with their line manager 
as a primary source of support and reference 
throughout the programme. The manager and 
the delegate identify the key strengths and 
areas for development of the individual in 
relation to their current role and potential 
future roles. A planning template is available 
for use in developing participant plans 
(Appendix Three). 

There are three elements within this assessment stage:

1) Assessing Knowledge: Key questions and prompts:
 To what extent has the delegate kept their knowledge and understanding up to date 

with regards to leading and managing people and resources?
 What evidence is there of appropriate Continuous Professional Development which 

has a leadership or management dimension e.g. via professional body membership 
or development that relates to leading and managing in the specific discipline area 
where the delegate operates?

2) Assessing Qualifications: Key question and prompts:
 Is there a qualification requirement for the current or any identified future role? Has 

the Academy delegate already attained this?
 Is there a clearly defined attainment or course of study required for future roles?

3) Assessing Competence: Key questions and prompts:
 Do the Academy delegates and their manager know how to identify strengths and 

development needs?
 What do the delegate and their line manager know and agree about behavioural 

competence in relation to their current role (Consider to what extent the delegate is 
able to demonstrate how they live up to the Organisation’s values – Appendix One)?

 What competencies are required in order to progress within the role and into other 
roles?

Raising awareness of strengths and areas for development 

The need for and benefits of changed behaviour

Knowledge of expectations and good practice

Page 82



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 8

Stage Two: Preparation – Identifying Development Priorities

Key questions and prompts:

 What action is required to maintain 
knowledge and understanding of 
leading and managing within the 
delegates area of work?

 Of the skills and attributes recognised 
as strengths or development needs, 
which are the ones that require 
attention first? What evidence is 
there?

 What will better performance look 
like? What will the delegate be doing 
differently and how?

 What action would make the most 
significant difference to performance? 

 What outcomes need to be achieved?
 Which aspects of the delegate’s role are the most challenging?
 What project work will best enable the delegate to take forward the objectives identified?

Key Resources (see page 8): 

 Academy Development Planning Template (Appendix Three)
 Performance and Development Review
 Quintax personality questionnaire feedback
 Hay Leadership Styles Workbook

Planning for improvement: 

Identifying what changed behaviour will look like in 
practice. 

Discussing and considering priorities and developing ideas 
for improving skills and qualifications. 

Producing an initial development plan

Page 83

https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://files.constantcontact.com/a4779f87001/9f906c8a-a688-428d-a931-981589a4952c.jpg?a%3D1129243892209&imgrefurl=http://myemail.constantcontact.com/Quintax-Psychometrics--News-and-Offers-.html?soid%3D1101541242698%26aid%3DF_8fd76aiq8&docid=wcdk0jjfhhEa2M&tbnid=HxMg99y7bo2M0M:&vet=10ahUKEwid9q6is6_aAhXGJ8AKHcbeAaIQMwhFKAwwDA..i&w=782&h=1122&itg=1&safe=strict&bih=934&biw=1920&q=quintax%20personality%20questionnaire&ved=0ahUKEwid9q6is6_aAhXGJ8AKHcbeAaIQMwhFKAwwDA&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https://pictures.abebooks.com/isbn/9780976649564-uk.jpg&imgrefurl=https://www.abebooks.co.uk/9780976649564/Leadership-Style-Workbook-Pack-Booklets-097664956X/plp&docid=-bD4D4BHuoo6cM&tbnid=pTU6-uoGMYhFQM:&vet=10ahUKEwifrP3Fs6_aAhWlAcAKHQ9jDo4QMwg9KAAwAA..i&w=386&h=500&safe=strict&bih=934&biw=1920&q=leadership%20styles%20workbook&ved=0ahUKEwifrP3Fs6_aAhWlAcAKHQ9jDo4QMwg9KAAwAA&iact=mrc&uact=8


The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 9

Diagnostics supporting Stage 1 and 2 above:

1. Academy Development Planning Document: The planning document leads the delegate and 
their line manager through the planning and implementation process on a step-by-step 
basis. Completed planning documents (Stages 1 to 3) should be copied to 
Martin.plant@rochdale.gov.uk to enable evaluation later in the year and to inform the 
Academy Board of delegate’s intentions. (Appendix Three).

2. PDR: Discussion specifically relating to Leadership and Management issues as part of the 
wider PDR conversation can provide data relating to strengths and development needs. 
Delegates should revisit recent PDR documents to pull out any pertinent data as it relates to 
leadership and management practice. If the delegate hasn’t had a PDR within the past 12 
months it is requested that one is scheduled alongside completion of the Academy Planning 
Document.

3. Quintax: A well designed diagnostic that provides a focus the major dimensions of 
preferences in personality. The domains addressed by Quintax are:

a. Relationships with others
b. Thinking styles
c. Resilience

Delegates will receive one-to-one feedback on their Quintax “type” and a leadership styles 
report based upon their responses.

4. Leadership Styles Workbook: The Hay Leadership Styles Workbook will help delegates to 
understand which of the leadership styles they use most frequently. It also enables 
comparison of preferred styles to what the perception of the style the working situation 
requires as a starting point for action and development. Delegates will also be able to use 
the workbook questionnaire to gather data from their team member to test whether their 
self-report matches how others see them in practice.

At the end of this stage the delegate and their line manager agree as to what skills, 
knowledge and / or behaviours will be developed over the next 12 to 18 months.

Academy Planning document “Stage One and Two”: Part 3 & 4

Page 84

mailto:Martin.plant@rochdale.gov.uk


The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 10

Stage Three:  Implementation – Resourcing the Development Plan

Key questions and prompts:

 Which resources (both internal and 
external) that are available to the 
delegate are best suited to provide 
the best fit to meet the development 
objectives identified at stage two?

 What would be an appropriate work based project that would enable the delegate to put 
new skills and behaviours into practice? 

Resources to Support Delegate Development

1. Developmental Coaching – Line Manager (This is a core Academy requirement): Regular 
and focussed coaching support from the delegate’s line manager. Coaching in this context 
refers to an intervention where a specific aspect or aspects of practice are examined and 
addressed. 

Both the Academy delegate and their line manager are required to attend an internal 
coaching skills workshop unless they have prior qualification or extensive experience 
See Rochdale Leadership Academy Workshop Programme (Appendix Four).

2. Developmental Coaching - external: Delegates may benefit from coaching from an 
individual outside their Directorate or from another organisation.  For further information 
contact Martin.plant@Rochdale.gov.uk

3. Reverse Mentoring: refers to an intervention where older leaders and managers are paired 
with and mentored by younger employees on topics related to technology and social media.

4. Internal Workshops & Briefings: A series of half-day practical and skills based programmes 
delivered by internal / external experts. (see Appendix Four)

5. Greater Manchester / North West Employers Offer: A range of opportunities are available 
via GM / North West Employers. Events and opportunities are regularly updated and 
publicised. Academy delegates will receive notification and updates throughout the year.

6. Reflective Practice Guide: Understanding our learning processes, reflecting on learning, 
analysing the outcome of our action and planning for action promotes personal learning. 
This guide is a practical aid to support reflection and learning. Participants will be issued with 
a guide at the commencement of their engagement with the Academy.

Taking action to realise the plan

Page 85

mailto:Martin.plant@rochdale.gov.uk


The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 11

7. Leadership Development Groups (LDG’s): Based on Action learning principles, LDG’s provide 
a supportive environment where Academy delegates can use the group to work on real 
leadership and management issues. The group enables participants to bring issues that may 
be complex and difficult to address. Participants reflect on and learn how to tackle “wicked” 
issues. LDG’s are facilitated with the underlying principle that the group becomes self-
facilitating over time. 

8. E-learning programmes: There are currently 38 Leadership & Management e-learning 
programmes available via the Me Learning platform. Topic areas include: Coaching; 
Communication; Team Leadership; HR issues; Personal Effectiveness.

9. Visits to other Organisations: These may be brokered via North West Employers or through 
delegate networks and personal contacts. Visits to other organisations can be useful in 
gaining insights into alternative approaches and practices to long standing issues within the 
participants work environment. Contact martin.plant@Rochdale.gov.uk for further 
information.

10. Directed Reading: As an aid to comprehension and usually arising out of coaching 
discussions. The delegate’s line manager may signpost the delegate to a journal article, 
website, report or discussion paper and then engage them in a dialogue regarding the piece 
to test and grow understanding and embed knowledge. This challenges the line manager to 
actively seek out appropriate resources. 

11. Year One Project: Academy delegates are required to undertake a project. The nature of the 
project is to be agreed between the delegate and their line manager and should include one 
or more elements relating to:
 Service improvement
 Team development
 Service user / Customer engagement

The Project should provide a narrative of the learning and development undertaken against 
the initial objectives set at the planning stage and reflections on the development of  
leadership and management practice. Project outcomes will be presented at a joint session 
with other delegates approximately one year after joining the academy.  

Page 86

mailto:martin.plant@rochdale.gov.uk


The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 12

12. Management Qualification (This is a core Academy requirement): Where a delegate has no 
existing formal leadership or management qualifications they will enrol on a management 
programme funded by the apprenticeship levy to gain a recognised qualification 

This qualification will usually be at ILM Level 5: For Leaders and managers who have some 
responsibility for strategic management within a team or service 

(Equivalent award level to second year UG degree; Dip HE; HND; BTEC Professional Diplomas, 
certificates and awards).

NB: Enrolment on this programme will take place towards the end of year 1 (Spring 2019)

At the end of this stage the delegate and their line manager agree the actions required to 
enable the delegate to achieve their objectives.

They will also have considered a project outline. This will be built upon in subsequent 
coaching meetings. The project element provides an opportunity to:

 Create a tangible outcome initiated as part of delegate engagement with the 
academy

 Provide an opportunity to put learning into practice relating to skills and 
behaviours identified at the objective setting stage

Academy Planning Document “Stage Three”: Proposed actions.

Page 87

https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https://www.procat.ac.uk/assets/uploads/general/ILM_100_H_HI_RGB.jpg&imgrefurl=https://www.procat.ac.uk/commercial/ilm-l3-certificate-in-leadership-and-management&docid=K9S1GXXJBBDuFM&tbnid=hjXgJsLHOrmfbM:&vet=10ahUKEwiJk8yWtK_aAhXJ26QKHXKsAlUQMwhNKBAwEA..i&w=4784&h=2362&safe=strict&bih=934&biw=1920&q=ilm%20level%203%20certificate%20in%20leadership%20and%20management&ved=0ahUKEwiJk8yWtK_aAhXJ26QKHXKsAlUQMwhNKBAwEA&iact=mrc&uact=8


The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 13

Stage Four: Maintenance –Coaching and Mentoring

In the context of the Academy, the delegate’s 
line manager will be the key provider of 
coaching support to the delegate. 

Using the objectives and action plan 
developed via the Academy Planning 
Template they will meet every 8 to 12 weeks 
to consider progress against the plan. The 
coaching process will enable the delegate to plot their way through difficulties and challenges with 
their line manager’s support and to reflect upon learning and improvement to practice.

Where agreed as part of the plan, coaching or mentoring support may be sought from other parts of 
the Organisation. Additional coaching support may be appropriate in enabling an individual to gain a 
different perspective from another discipline or area. Mentoring may be accessed to provide a more 
holistic career focused support and can be provided from another authority in the GM group.

The OD team in Human Resources can provide support in finding coaches and mentors. 
Contact: Martin.plant@rochdale.gov.uk

Maintaining new skills and behaviours 

Using the coaching and mentoring support available to 
enable the delegate to embed them

Page 88

mailto:Martin.plant@rochdale.gov.uk


The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 14

Stage Five:  Review

As part of the Coaching process the delegate 
and line manager will review progress against 
the development objectives and the action 
plan i.e.

 Are actions identified in the plan 
being taken? Are they having an 
impact?

Learning outcomes will be captured via;

 Survey interviews with participants and their line managers approximately 12 months into 
the process

 Data gathered from participant project presentations

At the end of the review period (usually coinciding with the delegate PDR) a plan for the next 12 
months will be formulated.

Reviewing the direction and pace of improvement

Page 89



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 15

Appendix One: Rochdale Borough Values & Priorities

Values:

Pioneering & Open in our approach

We are ambitious for the people and place of Rochdale and will work collaboratively 
with local people and partners, building relationships based on respect and 
openness, to deliver the best possible outcomes

Proud of the difference we make

We will celebrate and share our achievements and act as Ambassadors for the 
borough of Rochdale

Passionate about the diversity of the borough

We love the diversity within our workforce and local communities and will strive for 
excellence in meeting different needs and aspirations

Priorities

 People: Safeguarding and protecting our vulnerable people and supporting people of all ages 
to be healthier, confident and resilient.

 Place: Create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, 
work and invest.

 Prosperity: Encourage business growth and enterprise creating the conditions for more good 
quality jobs.

 Performance: Provide and commission a wide range of services for local people and 
communities, often working in partnership with others to ensure that services meet 
customers’ needs and expectations, are of high-quality and provide the best value for the 
resources we use.  

Page 90



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 16

Appendix Two: GM “Expectations” of Leaders

 We’re passionate about the people who live and work in GM.

 We come together to connect, learn and collaborate.

 We lead from place, always building from our collective strengths and resources.

 We challenge and explore new ways of working to create greater impact.

 We understand out personal and collective responsibilities in transforming GM.

Page 91



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 17

Appendix Three: Academy Development Planning Template

Stage One & Two: Intention (Awareness Raising) and Preparation (Development Priorities)

Part 1: Knowledge

Evidence relating to updating and maintain CPD as a leader and manager:

Events attended since 01/01/18:

Professional body membership & level:

Other:

Action proposed:

Page 92



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 18

Part 2: Assessment of Qualifications 

Current Leadership / Management Qualification level (highest):

Required Qualification level (where applicable):

Action proposed:

Page 93



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 19

Part 3: Assessing Skills and Competence: Most recent assessment of Strengths / Development 
needs / Competence e.g. via PDR, Quintax, LSW, etc.

Current Leadership & Management Strengths:

Evidenced by:

Current Leadership & Management areas for Development – Delegate Objectives: Skills; 
Behaviours; practice issues; practical applications and knowledge etc.

Evidenced by:

Page 94



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 20

Stage Three: Implementation – Resourcing the Development Plan

To be completed following consideration of Stages 1 & 2 above and after discussion with the 
delegates line manager

Proposed actions:

Accredited (qualification bearing) Leadership / Management Programmes: Source of 
funding?

Attendance at internal / external workshops:

E-learning modules:

Any other planned development activity:

Page 95



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 21

Project outline

Project Scope and Objectives (Linked to Development Objectives above)

Project Success criteria

Timescale

       Links to Corporate Values & Priorities and GM Expectations

Page 96



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 22

Stage Four: Maintenance – Coaching and Mentoring

Internal / External Coach or Mentor (in addition to coaching support from Line Manager)

Identity & Location:

Line Manager Coaching:

Meeting Dates & summary notes (4 meetings minimum in year 1):

1.

2.

3.

4.

Page 97



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 23

Stage 5: Review

Project outcomes (Summary)

Evaluative interview @ 12 months – assessment of delegate progress against objectives

 

Page 98



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 24

Appendix Four: Rochdale Leadership Academy Workshop Programme 2019

The venue for all events will be N1R Training & Conference Suite (Floor 1) unless otherwise stated

1. Diagnostic: Quintax Personality Questionnaire (1 x 1 hour)
December / January: MP & AH

2. Leadership 
Date(s)/Time:  Friday 17th January 1300 to 1600

Tuesday 21st January 0900 to 1200 
Thursday 30th January 0900 to 1200 

Presenters: MP, C Woods, LT Rep
Indicative Content: Hays Leadership Styles (Diagnostic), Leadership Models, Leadership 

v Management, Leadership & Motivation.

3. Project Planning 
Date(s)/Time: Wednesday 5th February 0900 to 1100 

Thursday 6th February 1400 to 1600 
Tuesday 11th February 0930 to 1130 

Presenters: MP, (From) R. Staniland, M Ashworth, M Wiggins, K Digiorgi, 
D Higgins, R Smith.

Indicative Content: Project planning tools and techniques. Examples of presentations 
from Cohort 2

4. Coaching Skills – Core – Delegates + Line Managers
Date(s)/Time:  Part 1: Thursday 27th February 0930 to 1230

Friday 28th February 0930 to 1230
Tuesday 3rd March 1300 to 1600

Presenter: MP
Indicative Content: Overview of the Whitmore GROW model and development of key 

coaching skills with an opportunity to practice and reflect. 

Date(s)/Time:  Part 2: Thursday 9th April 0930 to 1130
Tuesday 14th April 0930 to 1130
Friday 17th April 1330 to 1530

Presenter: MP
Indicative Content: Further skills development. Review of practice since session 1. 

Further practice opportunity and reflection.  

Page 99



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 25

5. Change & transition 

Date(s)/Time:  Thursday 14th May 1300 to 1600
Tuesday 19th May 1300 to 1600 

Presenters: MP, M Rhodes, L. Burke, S Croasdale, L. Greenwood
Indicative Content: Models relating to Change & transition. Resistance to change, case 

studies

6. Resilience
Date(s)/Time:  Tuesday 14th July 1300 to 1600

Thursday 23rd July 1300 to 1600 
Presenters: L Taylor & A Gilmore
Indicative Content: To explore strategies for maintaining and enhancing resilience for 

both individuals and teams

7. Systems Thinking
Date(s)/Time:  Thursday 13th August 0930 to 1230

Tuesday 18th August 1300 to 1600 
Presenters: tbc
Indicative Content: Developing an appreciation of systems in the Public sector context. 

What are the skills and attributes required to be a systems thinker 
and how does it help us to shape organisations?

8. Place and Culture
Date(s)/Time:  Tuesday 13th October 1300 to 1600

Thursday 22nd October 0930 to 1230 
Presenters: H Chicot, K Williams
Indicative Content: To explore the concept of “Place” in the Rochdale context and the 

impact of Culture on Service delivery with reference to the 21st 
Century “Public Servant”

9. Developing your Team 
Date(s)/Time:  Tuesday 8th December 1300 to 1600

Thursday 17th December 0930 to 1230 
Presenters: M Plant

Indicative Content: To provide participants with tools and techniques for developing 
their teams

Page 100



The Rochdale Leadership Academy

Rochdale Leadership academy Guidance Document 2019 Page 26

10. Leadership Development Groups (See Page 10 for further details)

Date(s)/Time: Session 1
Group 1: Tuesday 17th March 1330 to 1630
Group 2: Wednesday 18th March 0930 to 1230
Group 3: Tuesday 24th March 0930 to 1230
Group 4: Thursday 26th March 1330 to 1630

Date(s)/Time: Session 2

Group: Tuesday 9th June 1330 to 1630
Group 2: Thursday 11th June 1330 to 1630
Group 3: Tuesday 16th June 0930 to 1230
Group 4: Wednesday 17th June 0930 to 1230

Date(s)/Time: Session 3

Group 1: Tuesday 15th September 1330 to 1630
Group 2: Thursday 17th September 1330 to 1630
Group 3: Tuesday 22nd September 0930 to 1230
Group 4: Wednesday 23rd September 0930 to 1230

Date(s)/Time: Session 4

Group 1: Tuesday 10th November 0930 to 1230
Group 2: Thursday 12th November 1300 to 1600
Group 3: Tuesday 17th November 1300 to 1600
Group 4: Thursday 19th November 0930 to 1230

Page 101



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 26th November
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Health & Wellbeing
Report Author Rosemary Barker
Public/Private Document

Workforce Wellbeing Update 2019

Executive Summary

1. The purpose of this report is to update Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the progress made to date on the workforce wellbeing strategy 
for the Council and CCG. On the basis of a staff survey and engagement with 
a range of stakeholders (including newly appointed wellbeing champions from  
across the organisations) key priorities have been identified with a supporting 
action plan, overseen by a cross organisational steering group. The priorities 
and implementation plan are attached to the report as Appendix 1 and 2 
respectively                

Recommendation

2. That Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the progress being 
made to date and endorse the direction of travel. That the committee 
scrutinise this and make suggestions based on this scrutiny 

Reason for Recommendation

3. Workforce Wellbeing is a key enabler for the success of any organisation in 
terms of increased employee engagement, increased productivity and reduced 
absenteeism      

Key Points for Consideration

Page 102

Agenda Item 10



4.1.     In June 2018 the Joint Leadership team gave approval for a workforce 
wellbeing survey to be undertaken. The aim was to capture both qualitative 
and quantitative information on staff wellbeing to inform a workforce 
wellbeing strategy and action plan to strengthen employee engagement and 
satisfaction and to help to achieve the organisations’ objectives. 

4.2 It was recognised at this stage that the organisations already offered a wide 
range of policies, resources, information and activities to promote employee 
health and wellbeing but that it was not necessarily informed by staff 
themselves and lacked ownership, awareness and appropriate use by 
those who would benefit the most. 

4.3 Both Organisations have signed up to The Greater Manchester Good 
Employment Charter as a framework on which to base the approach. We 
are currently part of a pilot group of organisations of which there are twenty 
in number cross a range of sectors within Greater Manchester. The draft 
Charter is attached a s Appendix 3 to the report    

4.4 In July 2018 the Employee Wellbeing Survey was available for all staff to 
complete, either via printed copies or on-line. It was promoted through 
internal communications. There was a reasonable response received with 
just under 25% of the overall workforce completing the survey.  On a 
positive note responses came from across a wide range of services, based 
in a number of buildings, for example 19% of respondents were from Adult 
Care and Children’s Social Care. The responses included 60% females and 
33% males, which is representative of the overall workforce. 

4.5 The questionnaire covered a number of topics. Based on the National 
Workplace Wellbeing Charter these were grouped under the following 7 
standards:

 
- Leadership and communication
- Working environment, health and safety requirements
- Mental health and wellbeing
- Smoking and tobacco related ill health
- Physical activity
- Healthy eating
- Alcohol misuse

4.6 The responses were scrutinised and shared at a stakeholder workshop in 
May 2019, attended by 55 stakeholders including Elected Members, Trade 
Union representatives and employees representing various RBC services 
and HMR CCG. At the workshop views were captured around priorities and 
the above key themes were further explored. The key issues and priorities 
were then discussed and shared with the Joint Leadership Network ahead 
of a session with our 27 self-nominated Wellbeing Champions who were 
given the opportunity to prioritise actions for the key themes.  
The final three overarching themes that were recognised as significant are 
listed below and incorporate all the previous 7 themes are; 

Page 103



 Culture and Working Environment, 
 Positive People and Relationships
 Inspiring Healthy Habits. 

A workplace wellbeing framework (Appendix 1) has been produced 
summarising our 9 priorities for the coming year, as highlighted by the 
wellbeing champions, embedding the new values of Passion,Pride, 
Pioneering and Open, with 3 priorities sitting under each theme. These 
priorities are being supported by an action plan which is managed by a 
cross organisational steering group who meet monthly and is chaired by 
the Director of Public Health and Wellbeing. 

4.7 Many of the results from the survey highlighted the commitment to staff 
wellbeing already adopted as well as identifying opportunities to strengthen 
and build on some of the great work taking place to improve staff wellbeing. 
A summary of the key results is attached to the report as Appendix 3  

We have a team of 27 workforce wellbeing champions who put their names 
forward during the survey process. This group meets monthly to support the 
development and implementation of the action plan. The wellbeing 
champions are key in the communication process to make sure employees 
are aware of events and developments that are happening.

 
A Your workplace wellbeing branding theme has been developed and will 

be used for all communications. Your workplace wellbeing intranet pages 
have been developed to promote and coordinate activity in this area and 
to provide a consistent brand for the work. These can be viewed on the 
intranet pages via the following link.   

http://council.rochdale.local/corporate/health-wellbeing/SitePages/Home.aspx

4.8     In recognition of the progress we have made in this area of work we have 
been shortlisted for the ‘Active Workplace of the Year’ award by GreaterSport – 
Greater Manchester Sports Partnership.

4.9 A key focus for the group going forward is training with wellbeing training 
opportunities including mindfulness, Connect 5 and Stress Management    

Costs and Budget Summary

5. Currently the Healthy Workplaces programme manager, based in Link4Life 
dedicates 2 days per week to drive forward the work with support from colleagues 
in HR and OD, Health and Safety, Public Health and Communications along with 
other colleagues and the team of Workforce Wellbeing Champions.    

Risk and Policy Implications

6. The risk of failing to prioritise workforce wellbeing is low engagement, poor 
productivity, high absence rates and potential litigation    

Consultation

Page 104

http://council.rochdale.local/corporate/health-wellbeing/SitePages/Home.aspx


7. The recognised Trade Unions are key partners  in the workforce wellbeing 
programme of work   

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Rosemary Barker, , 
rosemary.barker@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 105



We recognise that employees are 
our most valuable resource, and with 
your involvement, we aspire to keep 
you mentally and physically well. 
You have told us that having a safe, 
healthy working environment, good 
relationships and healthy habits are 
the things that matter to you. 

We will provide opportunities in these 
3 areas to enable you to thrive as 
an employee of Rochdale Borough 
Council and HMR CCG. Our workplace 
wellbeing work will be driven by an 
annual implementation plan and 
supported by a steering group and 
Wellbeing Champions.

Your Workplace 
Wellbeing

You will have an information 
point for workplace wellbeing 
matters

You will have access to resource 
and space to participate in 
wellbeing activities

You will be empowered to 
get involved in activities that 
will benefit both you and the 
workforce

CULTURE & WORKING 
ENVIRONMENT

You will have opportunities to 
come together with colleagues 
with similar interests and 
shared experiences

You will be supported to 
develop personally and 
professionally

You will be supported to talk 
openly about your health and 
wellbeing in the workplace

POSITIVE PEOPLE AND 
RELATIONSHIPS

You will have opportunities for 
training associated with health 
and wellbeing 

You will be encouraged to eat 
well and keep hydrated

You will have access to health 
professionals to support your 
wellbeing 

INSPIRING HEALTHY 
HABITS

OUR VALUES: PIONEERING & OPEN, PROUD, PASSIONATE

P
age 106



Your Wellbeing: Implementation Plan 2019 – 2021 

1

Theme 1: Culture and Working Environment
Action Action Steps Outcomes By Whom By When Updates

Relevant health information to be 
gathered, included and regularly 
updated 
Development of the platform using 
Your wellbeing brandings

Employees will know where to 
access a wealth of information 
to enable them to manage their 
health and wellbeing 

Creation of a central information 
platform to communicate 
positive messages, programme 
information and self-help 
materials

Communication of the platform to 
all staff at all locations

Usage rates will increase as 
employees are made aware of 
where to access all information

Ellie Caddick        Dec ‘19 Webpages launched 
October 19

Create safe spaces for talking, both 
unaccompanied and with peers. 

Quiet space at all sites for 
employees to use.

Adam Clegg/ Fiona Brigg

Enhance a space on floor 1, 
N1R, which employees can use. 

Thomas SmeetonCreate a quiet environment where 
private, wellbeing related 
conversations can be held

Make employees aware of this 
space and its criteria for use.

Thomas Smeeton

Improving facilities and spaces to 
participate in wellbeing activities

Establish onsite facilities for 
wellbeing activities to reduce 
barriers to participation

Greater participation in 
wellbeing activities during the 
working day

Adam Clegg/ Fiona Brigg

Jan 20 Meeting with AC and TS in 
Oct 19. Adam is 
supportive and has agreed 
to enable the use of a 
room on Floor 1 for a 
quiet space as well as 
drive opportunities for 
health activities in other 
areas in N1R e.g. 
conference 

Empowering the workforce to 
engage in activities that will 
benefit them individually and as a 
workforce

Sign up and adhere to the GM 
Good work charter 
•Secure work;
•Flexible work;
•A real living wage;
•Workplace engagement & voice;
•Excellent recruitment practices & 
progression;
•Excellent people management;
•A productive & healthy 
workplace.

Providing a place of work that 
meets the objectives of the 
Charter, in particular, a 
productive & healthy 
workplace, that encourages 
employees to feel motivated, 
loyal and committed to RBC and 
HMR CCG

Rosemary Barker A consultation is taking 
place for pilot 
organisations in Nov 
19.Implementation will be 
ongoing.

P
age 107



Your Wellbeing: Implementation Plan 2019 – 2021 

2

Transform the organisations 
culture; supporting opportunities 
for volunteering, self-care and 
other responsibilities through 
flexible working

A workforce that are inspired to 
support colleagues for the 
benefit of all.

Rosemary Barker

Involve the workforce in the 
development of the ‘Your 
Wellbeing’ programme. Develop 
the Wellbeing Champions and 
channels of communication 

A workforce that are engaged in 
‘Your Wellbeing’, and want to 
benefit from its outcomes

Fiona Brigg
Ellie Caddick

Ongoing

Theme 2: Positive People and Relationships
Action Action Steps Outcomes By Whom By When Updates

Create opportunities’ for colleagues 
with similar experiences to come 
together: Wellbeing Champions, 
Carers Champions, Disability 
Champions, DV Champions, LBGT 
champions

Embedded groups of RBC staff 
from across the workforce who 
regularly meet to provide peer 
support and guidance. 

Fiona Brigg/Samina Arfan/Wendy 
Stringer

Ongoing Wellbeing Champions 
group commenced in June 
19
Carers group commenced 
in March 19
Menopause Café took 
place in Oct 2019
Potential LBGT group 
following Rochdale in 
Rainbows.

Assemble and update information on 
workforce skills and share on central 
information point. 

Improved relationships 
between services and teams, 
and an opportunity to enhance 
employees knowledge 

Wellbeing champions Ongoing

Opportunities to come 
together

Develop and utilise our 
internal talent pool, engaging 
and connecting staff

Facilitate delivery of wellbeing 
activities, to enhance the working day 
and employees’ personal 
development.

A more active, healthy, engaged 
workforce, with less health risk 
and lower sickness absence.

Adele Hoolahan Ongoing Following NFD evaluation, 
a yoga and spinning class 
are being organized for 
staff.

Supporting employees to 
develop personally and 
professionally

Reward and recognise employees 
through PDR’s and awards.

Consistent PDR’s 
The incidence and quality of 
PDR’s will be measured via the 
employee survey and pulse 

Martin Plant/Lucy Taylor Jan 2020 The revised PDR process 
will be presented to 
Directors in Sept/ Oct. If 
approval is forthcoming a 

P
age 108



Your Wellbeing: Implementation Plan 2019 – 2021 

3

surveys programme of 
implementation will be 
rolled out in the new year

Workforce training and development, 
including awareness on supporting 
carers, Connect 5 and domestic abuse

Further wellbeing related training 
workshops to be developed and 
delivered as required 

A workforce with greater 
awareness of the impact of 
wellbeing on the workforce. 

Opportunities for self- 
development and greater 
empathy with colleagues 
resulting in improved 
relationships and mental 
wellbeing.

Lucy Taylor Jan 2020 Mental Health training for 
both staff and managers 
scheduled for the New 
Year; draft training has 
been developed – awaiting 
consultation to assess 
efficacy before 
implementation

Create safe spaces for talking, both 
unaccompanied and with peers. 

Quiet space at all sites for 
employees to use.

Thomas Smeeton

Create a quiet environment where 
private, wellbeing related 
conversations can be held

An enhanced space on floor 1, 
N1R that employees can use. 
Make employees aware of this 
space and its criteria for use.

Thomas Smeeton TS is leading on this as part 
of his apprentice project.

Supporting a culture where 
it’s acceptable to talk about 
health and wellbeing. 

Theme 3: Inspiring Healthy Habits

Action Action Steps Outcomes By Whom By When Updates
Mental wellbeing training-Connect 5
Train Wellbeing Champions

Champions from across the 
business will be better placed 
to support and have 
conversations with colleagues 
about mental wellbeing

Living Well/Fiona Brigg December 2019 
and February 
2020

Wellbeing training 
opportunities

Domestic Abuse training and 
champions

Employees will be more aware 
of the impact of domestic abuse 
on wellbeing and able to 

Wendy Stringer November 19 Wendy is attending the 
Wellbeing Champions 
meeting on 18/11

P
age 109



Your Wellbeing: Implementation Plan 2019 – 2021 

4

support colleagues.
Carers training and e-learning Greater awareness of the 

impact of caring responsibilities 
on employees, and how they 
can be supported to remain in 
good work.

Zoe Benett
Jennie Crowther (e-learning)

October 2019 Carers UK have elearning 
modules that may be 
adapted for use.

User friendly kitchen spaces-fridges, 
microwaves for pre prepared lunches

More employees who prepare 
their own meals knowing they 
can store and heat them at 
work.

Adam Clegg/Fiona Brigg Jan 20 N1R kitchen facilities are 
being upgraded.

Encourage a culture where team 
indulgences include a healthy option

Promote healthier 
cakes/biscuits, alongside the 
provision of fruit

Emma Kershaw

Drinking water provided at all sites Employees who drink more 
water, and less sugary drinks

Ruth Bardsley/Adam Clegg

Access to facilities to support 
healthy eating and hydration

Promoting the EAP programme, to 
ensure staff are aware of the EAP and 
how to access it.

Greater EAP usage as reported 
to HR. 

Nancy Wilson
Ellie Caddick
Fiona Brigg

Ongoing Following EAP data 
analysis a plan is in place 
to promote the EAP and 
mental wellbeing.

Support from health 
professionals

Promoting workforce Health MOT’s 
and delivering them monthly at N1R 
and bi annually at other sites. 

Increased numbers of staff 
know their numbers and take 
appropriate action.

Link4Life Ongoing

P
age 110



Classified: Internal Personal and Confidential

Greater Manchester Good Employment Charter - Supporter

As a Greater Manchester employer, we are proud to support Greater Manchester’s ‘Good 
Employment Charter’.  Working alongside the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, the Local 
Enterprise Partnership, and other key organisations in our City Region, we have a shared ambition of 
creating good jobs for all with real opportunities to help people progress, develop and contribute to 
our thriving regional economy.

By supporting the Charter, we demonstrate our commitment to become one of the best places to live, 
work and play in the world.  We are a member of a forward-thinking business community, which 
champions responsible employment practices and supports sustainable growth.

We fully support the Charter’s seven ‘Good Employment Principles’ which set out what good 
employment practice, effective employee engagement and good and fair employment looks like. 
These are dynamic and will evolve as more organisations get involved and different approaches are 
recognised. 

1. Extending Secure work – we commit to giving our employees clarity over the hours they work 
and not to use unnecessary forms of insecure employment, so they have more security over 
their income and can manage their work and non-work commitments more easily. 

2. Extending Flexible work – we will give employees the opportunity to work flexibly wherever 
possible, providing greater equality of opportunity, creating a more diverse and inclusive 
workplace and helping us make better use of the skills and talents of our workforce.

3. Working Towards Paying A Real Living Wage – set at the level recommended by the Living 
Wage Foundation, so our employees can achieve a decent standard of living and that we, as 
employers, can benefit from better retention and workforce engagement, with the savings 
that brings.  

4. Improving Workplace Engagement & Voice – so that our staff can fully contribute to the 
direction and success of our organisation and shape their roles, with recognised trade unions 
facilitating the expression of the employees’ collective voice where possible, building effective 
employee engagement activity and with support from relevant professional bodies.  

5. Developing Excellent Recruitment & Progression – so we as employers can take full 
advantage of the diversity and talents across all Greater Manchester communities through 
transparent, inclusive and fair processes, engaging with schools, further education and higher 
education providers and employment programmes, making sure our staff have opportunities 
to continually develop and use their skills and experience. 

6. Improving People Management – we value all our employees and will develop fair and 
inclusive workplaces, investing in the training and development of the workforce, including 
managers, and inspiring and motivating staff to make sure we are a successful and high 
performing organisation.  

7. Developing A Productive & Healthy Workplace – we support the mental and physical health 
of all our employees, including adjustments for people with long-term conditions and 
disabilities, delivering high standards of health and safety in the workplace, and so reducing 
the costs of absences and providing the benefits of a more diverse workforce.

Page 111



1

OVERVIEW OF THE SURVEY RESULTS AND OPPORTUNITIES TO ADDRESS THE FINDINGS 

General: 

 The first question in the survey asked participants about their general health and asked them to 
rate it either Very Good, Good, Average, Poor or Very Poor.  The outcome from this question was 
positive, and the majority of people who completed the survey, described their general health as 
good or very good (72%).

 However, there was some variation.  In the 0-19 age group 82% reported themselves as having 
good or very good health, compared to 69% in the 40-49 age group.  Between males and females 
the proportion was almost the same, 74% and 73% respectively. 

Leadership and communication:

 Consider comments such as ‘encourage line managers and directors to be role models’

 58% have used the flexible working scheme and consider it a good benefit. A further 26.5% haven’t 
used it, but still think it’s a good idea. A quarter of employees have not accessed the flexible working 
initiative, and the many comments regarding the lack of consistency of flexible working demonstrate 
the requirement to implement clear guidelines across the business. Communicating policies and 
supporting line managers to implement the initiative to employees where appropriate may improve 
work-life balance/wellbeing. 

 Only a quarter of employees have engaged in a health and wellbeing event, leaving 54% having never 
participated in a staff health and wellbeing event. In the future these would benefit from being needs 
led and widely communicated.

 8% of staff report that regular 1:1 and Employee Performance Development Review’s (EPDR) are not 
applicable to them. Almost 15% consider them to not be a good idea and 17% have never used them. 
Promotion of EPDR’s and 1:1’s with all managers to improve communication and identify any issues 
that may be impacting on wellbeing is vital. But almost three quarters believe their line manager 
involves them in decision making about their work and they could discuss their health and wellbeing 
needs with them if required. 20% don’t feel supported to perform. There is an opportunity to ensure 
that all line mangers are skilled in having difficult conversations, developing people and resolving 
disputes.

 Two thirds agree that RBC supports a healthy work-life balance with 42% agreeing that RBC 
encourages them to lead a healthy lifestyle (leaving 58% who didn’t), and almost 60% agree that this 
is supported by their line manager (40% no opinion or disagree). 60% agree RBC supports them to 
have a positive work-life balance. A majority (66%) agreed that their work schedule was flexible 
enough to meet their needs.

Working environment, health and safety requirements:

Page 112



2

 It is critical that the 103 respondents who do not feel that their place of work is safe and secure are 
recognised and the vulnerabilities are eliminated. Regular health and safety meetings should be held 
with employee representation in developing and evaluating health and safety policies.
 

 Regular and consistent workstation assessments to improve the 24% of workforce who reported 
lumbar seating position as having an influence on their wellbeing. 

 Environmental factors that impact on employee’s wellbeing include stress (34%), temperature (33%) 
and seating position (24%). 

Mental health and wellbeing:

 2 thirds have never used the Employee Assistance Programme (EAP), but believe it is a good 
employee benefit. 

 A third of the workforce believes that RBC positively supports their mental wellbeing. A quarter 
disagrees, or strongly disagrees with this statement. 30% are satisfied that they have the 
opportunities to look after their mental wellbeing before, during and after work.

 Asking staff how they feel resulted in half of respondents describing their energy levels at work as 
average, poor or very poor. Just under half of respondents describe their mood at work as average, 
poor or very poor. However, 57% rate their concentration as good or very good. A third consider 
their stress levels as good or very good, but 2 thirds consider their stress levels as average, poor or 
very poor. Counteracting stress levels with positive actions would be beneficial, such as opportunities 
to exercise, lunch breaks and a supportive environment. 

 Although the general perception around mental wellbeing as a RBC employee is positive (a third 
agree or strongly agree that RBC positively supports their mental wellbeing, 30% are satisfied or very 
satisfied that the opportunities to look after their mental wellbeing and two thirds believe that RBC 
supports a healthy work-life balance), there are a large number of employees (20-30%) who do not 
feel that their mental wellbeing is supported as a RBC employee, and 70% who reported stress levels 
were below average. Opportunities to promote the EAP and other wellbeing programmes are 
important, as are regular 1:1’s, annual EPDR’s,  and other methods of communication regarding 
workload, work-life balance, external stressors, line management and other contributing factors.

 Comments were noted such as ‘more training on mental wellbeing’. Mental Health First Aid Training 
/ Connect 5 could be delivered for line management to enable them to confidently have 
conversations with staff regarding mental wellbeing. 

Smoking and tobacco related ill health:

Page 113



3

 Smoking prevalence amongst those who completed the survey was reported at 10%, which is much 
lower than the prevalence in Rochdale and across the North West (17.8% and 16.1% respectively).  
Only 3% of respondents reported that they smoke during the working day.

 Vaping prevalence amongst those who completed the survey was reported at 5%.  This is similar to 
the national picture which is reported to be around 6%.  Only 2% reported vaping during the 
working day.

 Despite the uptake of smoking cessation and drug and alcohol services being low, there are many 
who believe they are a positive benefit. The council has an up to date smoke free and vape free policy 
and this needs actively promoting, implementing and supporting by all staff and line managers, with 
breaches being reported and acted upon.

Physical activity:

 There is justification to deliver physical activity programmes with 60% being sedentary during the 
working day and 39% intending to change their activity levels in the near future. The biggest barrier 
to participation was work commitments (36%) family commitments (34%), and cost of facilities 
(24%).); could this be influenced through flexible working, or managing workloads? In addition, 
reducing the cost of L4L facilities, or activities being provided on site at minimal costs to reduce the 
monetary factor and the barrier of having no one to exercise with. Recurrent suggestions from 
employees include walking lunch groups, walking meetings, yoga, walking routes around the 
building, improving facilities, team based activities, senior members of staff leading by example and 
the need for changes in culture allowing greater flexibility to allow participation.

 60% report using the stairs to access upper floors but unfortunately this does not provide a picture 
on how often, how many levels etc. Work is already being carried out to encourage stair usage, which 
can increase activity during the working day, but we should be driving a culture where stairs are the 
default option for getting between floors. To measure the impact of the signage, we should measure 
stair usage before and after the signage is put up. Employees should be encouraged to take regular 
breaks.
 

 Only 14% walk or cycle on their commute to work. Over half of the workforce commute between 1-
5 miles, yet 83% drive to work. With the large numbers who live less than 5 miles from their place of 
work, yet use a car, there are opportunities to increase numbers who are using active transport to 
commute to work through working with TfGM. Improving the facilities on sites such as lockers and 
drying facilities to remove barriers could impact this. Alternatively, promoting a car sharing scheme 
has benefits for the environment and can alleviate some of the commuter stresses and build 
relationships between colleagues. 

Healthy eating and water:

 67% of employees drink less than 5 glasses of water per day. Work alongside Public Health to promote 
drinking water during the working day. Ensure all sites have available drinking water and promote a 
campaign to encourage it, highlighting the benefits of being hydrated.

Page 114



4

  Almost 40% have been thinking about or intend to improve their diet in the coming months. There 
is opportunity for healthy eating interventions to encourage healthier diets.

Alcohol misuse:

 Although alcohol consumption doesn’t seem a problem generally, there are people who drink more 
than 2-3 units of alcohol 5+ nights a week. This could be challenged through alcohol and mental 
health/stress campaigns as well as increased awareness of the support services available and 
managers understanding and addressing the link between alcohol, substance misuse and stress.

Page 115



Document is Restricted

Page 116

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 121

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,3,5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Capital Report
	7 Finance Update Report 2019/20
	P6 FU Dashboard for Cabinet

	8 Collection Fund 2019/20
	Append. 1 for Collection Fund 2019/20

	9 Organisational Development Plan 2019
	Append. 1 for Organisational Development Plan 2019
	Append. 2 for Organisational Development Plan 2019
	Append. 3 for Organisational Development Plan 2019

	10 Workforce Wellbeing Update 2019
	Append. 1 for Workforce Wellbeing Update 2019
	Append. 2 for Workforce Wellbeing Update 2019
	Append. 3 for Workforce Wellbeing Update 2019
	Append. 4 for Workforce Wellbeing Update 2019

	12 Insurance Claims Report 2018/19
	Append. 1 for Insurance Claims Report 2018/19


